
 

 
22 July 2013 Agenda 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
AGENDA 

Henderson City Council Short Regular Meeting 
Monday, 22 July 2013, 6:00 p.m. 

R. G. (Chick) Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal Building 
134 Rose Avenue 

Henderson, North Carolina 
     

Mayor and City Council Members 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding 

 
Councilmember James C. Kearney, Jr.  
Councilmember Sara M. Coffey 
Councilmember Michael C. Inscoe 
Councilmember D. Michael Rainey 

 
Councilmember Brenda G. Peace—Jenkins  
Councilmember Garry D. Daeke 
Councilmember Vernon L. Brown 
Councilmember George M. Daye 

 
City Officials 
A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
IV. OPENING REMARKS 

 
V. ADJUSTMENTS TO AND/OR APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

In order to provide for the highest standards of ethical behavior and Transparency in Governance 
as well as provide for good and open government, the City Council has approved Core Values 
regarding Ethical Behavior1 and Transparency in Governance2.  The Mayor now inquires as to 
whether any Council Member knows of any conflict of interest, or appearance of conflict, with 
respect to matters before the City Council.  If any Council Members knows of a conflict of 
interest, or appearance of conflict, please state so at this time. 
 

                                                 
1 Core Value 4:  Ethical Behavior:  We value the public trust and will perform our duties and 
responsibilities with the highest levels of integrity, honesty, trustworthiness and professionalism. 
 
2 Core Value 10:  Transparency in Governance:  We value transparency in the governance and 
operations of the City. 
 



 

 
22 July 2013 Agenda 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
 
 

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
a)  8 July 2013 Regular Meeting [See Notebook Tab 1] 
 

VII. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

a) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-17, Amending Zoning Ordinance Section 619B.3 
to Include Mental Health Counseling as a Service to be Allowed as a Home Occupation by 
Special Use Permit.  (CAF 13-33-A)  [See Notebook Tab 2] 

 
  ● Public Hearing 
  ● Ordinance  

 
VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Citizens may only speak on Agenda items at this time.  Citizens wishing to address the Council 
must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  The 
sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, come forward to the 
podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident, and identify the Agenda Item 
about which you wish to speak on the sign-up sheet.  Please review the Citizen Comment 
Guidelines that are provided on the last page of this Agenda.3  
 

IX. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 a) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-44, FY14 Budget Amendment #5, Appropriating 

Fund Balance to Cover the Repairs to the Shelter at the Police Training Center. (CAF 13-87)  
[See Notebook Tab 3] 

 
  ● Ordinance 13-44 

 b) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-45, Moving the Continuation of Privilege 
Licenses (For Businesses Who are Moving Their Location) From the City Council to the 
Finance Director to Insure Their Good Financial Standing with the City of Henderson.  (CAF 
13-88)  [See Notebook Tab 4] 

 
  ● Ordinance 13-45 
 
 c) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-59, Appointments to the Henderson Community 

Appearance Commission, Perry Memorial Library Board of Trustees, Henderson-Vance 
Human Relations Commission, Henderson Zoning Board of Adjustment and Henderson 
Planning Board.  (CAF 13-81)  [See Notebook Tab 5] 

  
  ● Resolution 13-59 



 

 
22 July 2013 Agenda 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 

 
X. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

All matters listed under the Consent Agenda have either been previously discussed by City 
Council during a previous meeting and/or are considered in the ordinary course of business by 
the City Council and will be enacted-on by one motion and a roll call vote in the form listed.  If 
discussion is desired by either the Council or the Audience, the item in question will be removed 
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately after the revised consent agenda has been 
approved.  
 

 a) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-61, Awarding of Departmental Handgun and 
Badge to Retiree Senior Police Officer Alvis L. Hawkins. (CAF 13-83) [See Notebook Tab 6] 

 
  ● Resolution 13-61 

 
 b) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-43, FY14 Budget Amendment #4, Re-budgeting 

Lease Purchase Items not Delivered Prior to June 30, 2013. (CAF 13-84) [See Notebook Tab 
7] 

 
  ● Ordinance 13-43 
 
 c) Consideration of Approval of Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the Month 

of June, 2013. (CAF 13-86)  [See Notebook Tab 8] 
 
XI. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Citizens may only speak on non-Agenda items only at this time.  Citizens wishing to address the 
Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.   
The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, come forward to the 
podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident.  Please review the Citizen 
Comment Guidelines that are provided on the last page of this Agenda.3 

                                                 
3 Citizen Comment Guidelines 
The Mayor and City Council welcome and encourage citizens to attend City Council meetings and to offer comments on matters of concern 
to them.  Citizens are requested to review the following public comment guidelines prior to addressing the City Council. 
1)  Citizens are requested to limit their comments to five minutes; however, the Mayor, at his discretion, may limit comments to three 
minutes should there appear to be a large number of people wishing to address the Council;  
2)  Comments should be presented in a civil manner and be non-personal in nature, fact-based and issue oriented.  Except for the public 
hearing comment period, citizens must speak for themselves during the public comment periods;  
3)  Citizens may not yield their time to another person;  
4) Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the appropriate city official, Council Committee or agency and may, if in order, 
be scheduled for a future meeting agenda;  
5)  Individual personnel issues are confidential by law and will not be discussed.  Complaints relative to specific individuals are to be 
directed to the City Manager;  
6)  Comments involving matters related to an on-going police investigative matter and/or the court system will not be permitted; and  
7)  Citizens should not expect specific Council action, deliberation and/or comment on subject matter brought up during the public 
comment section unless and until it has been scheduled as a business item on a future meeting agenda. 
 



 

 
22 July 2013 Agenda 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
 
 
XI. REPORTS 
 

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem 
b) City Manager  

i. Impacts of State Tax Reform  [See Notebook Tab 9] 
c) City Attorney 
d) City Clerk 

i. Calendar Update [See Notebook Tab 10] 
ii. E-911 Report 

iii. Henderson Fire Department 
iv. Henderson Police Department 

 
XII. CLOSED SESSION 
 
 a) Pursuant to G.S.§143-318.11 (a)(4) regarding an Economic Development Prospect. 
 b) Pursuant to G.S.§143-318.11 (a)(3) regarding two Attorney/Client Privilege matters. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

8 July 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 1 of 7 

 City Council Minutes - DRAFT 
Regular Meeting 

8 July 2013 

 
 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members Sara M. Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, 
D. Michael Rainey, Garry D. Daeke, Vernon L. Brown, and George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., and Brenda Peace-Jenkins.  
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, City Attorney John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Clerk Esther J. 
McCrackin, Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, Finance Director Katherine C. Brafford, 
Planning & Community Development Director Erris Dunston, Recreation and Parks Director 
Alan Gill, Assistant Fire Chief Steve Cordell, and Fire Chief Danny Wilkerson. 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 8 July 2013 Regular Meeting of the Henderson City Council was called to order by Mayor 
James D. O’Geary at 6:01 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal 
Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Council Member Rainey led those in attendance in a prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
Mayor O’Geary welcomed everyone to this meeting.  Council Member Kearney is recovering at 
home from hospitalization and he asked the Mayor to express his appreciation for all the cards, 
calls and prayers he has received. 
 
ADJUSTMENTS TO/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any adjustments to the Agenda.  City Attorney Zollicoffer, 
Jr., asked for a Closed Session for a client-attorney matter in accordance with G.S. §143-318-



 

 
Minute Book 42 

8 July 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 2 of 7 

11.a(3).  He said he did not anticipate any announcement after the Session.  Mayor O’Geary 
asked for the pleasure of Council.  Council Member Inscoe moved to accept the adjusted 
Agenda.  Motion seconded by Council Member Daye and unanimously approved. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for any corrections to and/or approval of the minutes.  Council Member 
Coffey moved the approval of the 24 June Short Regular Meeting, 25 June Recessed Meeting 
and 27 June Recessed Meeting minutes as presented.  Motion seconded by Council Member 
Rainey and unanimously approved. 
 
PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS 
 
Mayor O’Geary commended Eagle Scouts Nick Andrews and Sam Long for their hard work in 
achieving this honor.  He presented both with City pins.  Council Member Rainey congratulated 
both young men and said Sam Long’s brother and father are Eagle Scouts.  Mr. Long thanked 
Recreation and Parks Director Alan Gill for giving Sam the opportunity to paint the fences at 
Fox’s Pond Tennis Courts and Mr. Andrews said Nicholas had a similar opportunity at E.M. 
Rollins School where he remodeled the scoring box. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 
The City Clerk advised the Mayor and Council Members that no citizen wished to speak to 
Council on agenda matters.   
  
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Authorizing the Adoption of the Vance County’s Language Access Plan (Resolution 13-52); 
Authorizing the Adoption of the Local Jobs Initiative Section 3 Plan (Resolution 13-56); 
and Authorizing the Adoption of the Citizen’s Participation Plan (Resolution 13-57)   
(Reference:  CAF 13-77; Resolutions 13-52, 13-56 and 13-57) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Planning and Community Development Director Erris Dunston to 
explain these plans.  Ms. Dunston said the Participation Plan needed revisions since it was last 
updated in 2009; the County has revised its Language Access Plan and adoption of the Jobs 
Initiative would allow for local hiring.  These revisions meet the requirements of the Capacity 
Building Grant that was awarded on 11 April 2012. 
 
There was no discussion.  Mayor O’Geary said all three resolutions could be taken in one motion 
and asked for the pleasure of Council.  
 
Council Member Rainey moved the approval of Resolution 13-52, Authorizing the Adoption of 
the Vance County’s Language Access Plan; Resolution 13-56, Authorizing the Adoption of 
the Local Jobs Initiative Section 3 Plan; and Resolution 13-57, Authorizing the Adoption of 
the Citizen’s Participation Plan.  Motion seconded by Council Member Coffey and 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

8 July 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 3 of 7 

APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Daeke, Brown and Daye.  
NO:  None.  ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: Kearney and Peace-Jenkins.  (See Resolution Book 3, 
p. 205, 213 and 215) 
 
Amending the Agreement Authorizing Vance County to Extend 2,500 Linear Feet of 
Waterlines into Warren County.  (Reference:  CAF 13-58-A; Resolution 13-40-A) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked City Attorney John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., to explain the need for this 
amendment.   Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr., said after approval between Vance County, Warren 
County and the City in May, Warren County has requested a few revisions, none of which affect 
the City of Henderson.  However, according to the agreement Vance County must receive the 
City’s approval regarding any changes.  He then reviewed the requested changes saying if at any 
time Vance County Water District is unable to provide water to Warren County residents located 
within the said designated area of the Vance County line, Warren County would have the 
option/right to provide water to those residents; Warren County will have the opportunity to 
purchase the water lines installed by Vance County if approved by both parties at a fair market 
value; and Warren County has the right to construct and operate water lines in the designated 
area if Vance County Water District does not begin construction within eighteen (18) months of 
the execution of the agreement. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked about the water pricing if Warren County purchased the water 
lines from Vance County.  Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr. responded he would expect the pricing to be 
at Warren County’s rates. 
 
There were no other questions.  Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Council Member Inscoe moved the approval of Resolution 13-40-A, Amending the Agreement 
Authorizing Vance County to Extend 2,500 Linear Feet of Waterlines into Warren County. 
Motion seconded by Council Member Rainey and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: 
Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Daeke, Brown and Daye.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: 
Kearney and Peace-Jenkins. (See Resolution Book 3, p.181-A) 
 
Authorizing the Acceptance of FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant; and FY13-14 
Budget Amendment #2, Establishing the Budget for the Above Mentioned Grant.  
(Reference:  CAF 13-79; Resolution 13-54 and Ordinance 13-40) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Fire Chief Danny Wilkerson to address Council regarding this grant.  
Chief Wilkerson said notice has been received that the request for a FEMA Grant approved on 
12 March 2012 by Council, has been approved in the amount of $14,146 with a 5% match of 
$744.  He added the original request was for $709,000.  The grant will be used to purchase two 
(2) ventilation saws and eighteen (18) fire hose nozzles.  Chief Wilkerson said some of the fire 
hose nozzles have been in use since he began on the force over 30 years ago. 
 
There was no discussion and Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

8 July 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 4 of 7 

Council Member Coffey moved the approval of Resolution 13-54, Authorizing the Acceptance of 
FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant; and Ordinance 13-40, FY13-14 Budget Amendment #2, 
Establishing the Budget for the Above Mentioned Grant. Motion seconded by Council Member 
Daeke and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Inscoe, Rainey, Daeke, Brown, Daye and 
Coffey. NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: Kearney and Peace-Jenkins  (See Resolution 
Book 3,  p. 209 and Ordinance Book 9, p 1) 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda have either been previously discussed by City 
Council during a previous meeting and/or are considered in the ordinary course of business by 
the City Council and will be enacted-on by one motion and a roll call vote in the form listed.  If 
discussion is desired by either the Council or the Audience, the item in question will be removed 
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately after the revised consent agenda has been 
approved.  
 
Ratifying and Approving the Mayor’s Signature on Amendment #5 for the North Carolina 
Rural Economic Development Center Contract 2010-266-40101-112 Relative to the 
Replacement of the UV Disinfection System at Henderson Water Reclamation Facility.  
(Reference:  CAF 13-78; Resolution 13-53)  This project is complete and the remaining funds 
were allowed to be used on the Sanitary Sewer Rehab Project.  An extension to 30 September 
2013 has been approved for submitting the final report and to expedite the process, Mayor 
O’Geary signed the amendment on 2 July 2013.  (See Resolution Book 3, p 207) 
 
Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the Month of May 2013.  (Reference: 
CAF 13-64). The Finance Director reviewed the tax releases and refunds and found them to be in 
order for the Month of May 2013.  (See below) 
 

May 2013 Tax Releases
Name Reason Tax Year Amount

Real & Personal Property
Releases
H & H Yarns, Inc Lost to Foreclosure 2004 257.87
H & H Yarns, Inc Lost to Foreclosure 2005 269.95
Allen, Jerry W Correct Ownership 2011 34.78
Tomas, Israel Correct Ownership 2011 -34.78
American Real Estate Lost to Foreclosure 2012 71.53
Bailey, Verlian R Lost to Foreclosure 2012 386.92
Brame, James A. Jr. Lost to Foreclosure 2012 42.61
Danismine Corporation Lost to Foreclosure 2012 670.28
Total R&P Property Releases 1,699.16$              

Tax Releases & Refunds May 2013- Continued 
 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

8 July 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 5 of 7 

Real & Personal Property
Refunds

NONE -$                     

Total R& P  Property Refunds -$                     

Total R&P Prop. Rel. & Ref. 1,699.16$             

Vechicle Releases
Alston, Lashaunda Denise Pro-Rate 2012 3.68$                    
Barcelona, Garro Diego Manuel Pro-Rate 2012 82.76$                  
Bey, Narmir Maluk Correct Situs 2012 64.93$                  
Bodram, Joanna S Pro-Rate 2012 11.40$                  
Bryant, Rockele Reshell Jean Pro-Rate 2012 2.40$                    
Bryant, Shannon Maria Pro-Rate 2012 30.93$                  
Chavis, Barbara Jean Pro-Rate 2012 11.32$                  
Cheek, Neice Cleveland Pro-Rate 2012 5.09
Cozart, Rose Marie Pro-Rate 2012 8.46
Dechant, Heather Marie Pro-Rate 2012 118.87
Ellis, Joseph McDonald Pro-Rate 2012 0.41
Gupton, Steven Jay Transfer Out 2012 65.05
Hodge, Domonique Jalee Pro-Rate 2012 2.97
Jones, Davine Marie Pro-Rate 2012 24.61
Litvin, Stuart Lee Correct Value 2012 19.44
Medlin, Christian Elaine Correct Situs 2012 107.87
Robertson, Kennety Way Pro-Rate 2012 4.61
Ryder Truck Rental, Lt. Transfer Out 2012 176.55
Shukair, Rand Adnan Correct Value 2012 9.94
Small, Josephine Pro-Rate 2012 11.53
Thomas, Teresa Nowell Pro-Rate 2012 5.09
Tucker, Christopher Scott Transfer Out 2012 135.31
Turner, Jacquelyn Dawn Pro-Rate 2012 44.37
Warren, Irene Brown Pro-Rate 2012 31.10
Total Vehicle Releases 978.69$                 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

8 July 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 6 of 7 

 
Tax Releases & Refunds May 2013- Continued 

 
Vehicle Refunds
Allen, Hattie Watkins Pro-Rate 2012 74.34
Alston, Lashaunda Denise Pro-Rate 2012 13.60
Jaeger, John Christopher Pro-Rate 2012 15.48
Moticka, Betty Correct Value 2012 7.11
Riddle, Tommy Dean Pro-Rate 2012 21.28
Sauer, Mehan McHugh Pro-Rate 2012 1.97
Short, John Vance Pro-Rate 2012 6.39
Ward, Robert Michael Correct Value 2012 6.83
Total Vehicle Refunds 147.00$                
Tot. Veh. Rel. & Ref. 1,125.69$             

Total All Releases & Refunds 2,824.85$              
 

Mayor O’Geary asked for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  
  
Council Member Inscoe moved the approval of the Consent Agenda as presented.  Motion 
seconded by Council Member Coffey and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Rainey, 
Daeke, Brown, Daye, Coffey and Inscoe. NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  Kearney 
and Peace-Jenkins. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
City Clerk McCrackin advised one citizen wished to address City Council.  
 
 Anthony Jones, 213 Perry Street  Mr. Jones spoke about the late fee on water bills.  He 
said he forgot to pay his bill and when he remembered he had to not only pay the bill but a 
$12.00 late fee and a $13.00 reconnect fee.  He said for being seven (7) days late, the fees 
charged amounted to 39% interest.  Mr. Jones said he did not want a refund and he did not 
advocate paying bills late but he did want Council to reconsider the fee structure.  He suggested a 
graduated fee schedule and said those that are routinely late needed to be penalized.  Mr. Jones 
felt the current fees are very aggressive and asked Council to think about this issue. 
 
Council Member Coffey then raised a question about a situation a citizen brought to her recently 
regarding an individual moving back into the City who was required to pay a $200.00 deposit in 
addition to other fees to set up water.  City Manager Griffin was aware of the situation and 
explained the individual left in 2010 with a history of multiple cutoffs and leaving a bill in 
excess of $100.00.  The individual was unable to provide a letter of good credit from his/her 
most current provider and living outside City limits added to the expense. 
 
A brief discussion followed and Council agreed to revisit this issue.  City Manager Griffin will 
add this as an item on the July work session.  



 

 
Minute Book 42 

8 July 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 7 of 7 

 
On a separate issue, Council Member Coffey said when Mr. Danny Wright addressed Council 
regarding the Kerr-Tar Council of Government’s (COG) request for an additional assessment, 
Mr. Wright said he would provide a list of businesses the COG works with and wondered if the 
list had been received.  City Manager Griffin said he would follow-up with Mr. Wright. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked if Waste Industries conversion to compressed natural gas 
pertained to service vehicles only and asked if the anticipated savings would change the existing 
contract.  City Manager Griffin said he would review the contract and report back to Council. 
 
REPORTS 
 

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem (No Report) 
b) City Manager (No Report)  
c) City Attorney  (No Report)  
d) City Clerk  (No Report) 

 
With no further discussion, Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was prepared to go into Closed 
Session. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
Council Member Rainey moved for Council to convene in closed session pursuant to G.S. §143-
318.11(a)(3) for an Attorney-Client  Privilege Matter.  Motion seconded by Council Member 
Daye and unanimously approved.  
 
Council Member Rainey moved for Council to convene in open session.  Motion seconded by 
Council Member Coffey and unanimously approved.   
 
With no further discussion, Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was prepared to adjourn. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Coffey moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Daeke, 
and was unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned 6:50 p.m. 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor  
      ATTEST: 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin  
      City Clerk 

 



CAF 13-33-A: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 1 of 6 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 

16 July 2013 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  13-33-A 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-17, Amending Zoning Ordinance 
Section 619B.3 to Include Mental Health Counseling as a Service to be Allowed as a 
Home Occupation by Special Use Permit 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 3: Revise and Align Land Use and Sign Ordinance and Implement Conditional 
 Use Zoning 

 
 

Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Ordinance 13-17, Amending Zoning Ordinance Section 619B.3 to Include 

Mental Health Counseling as a Service to be Allowed as a Home Occupation by Special Use 
Permit. 

 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
On 4 March 2013, the Henderson Planning Board had a request to add Mental Health Counseling 
to the list of home occupations in the R15 zoning district by special use permit.  After reviewing 
research provided by the staff from other towns regarding this matter, the Planning board 
unanimously supported this request. 
 
City Attorney John Zollicoffer, Jr. was not present at the Planning Board meeting when this item 
was discussed and had some concerns when this was brought before City Council on 8 April 
2013.  He asked that it be noted that Section 619B.1 et seq sets forth the criteria for home 
occupations.  The present Zoning Ordinance permits five designated home occupations, as 
identified above to be permitted with a Special Use Permit in 8 Zoning Districts (but not 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
 
Agenda Item: _________ 
 
Council Meeting: 22 July 13 Short Reg. Meeting 



CAF 13-33-A: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 2 of 6 

 

including R-15 or other more restrictive Zoning Districts).  Mental Health Counseling is not 
presently a permitted home occupation in any Zoning District.  None of the existing home 
occupations (hairdressing, barber, dressmaking and/or clothing alterations, engineer, architect 
and surveyors) involve medically related or counseling related activities.  Therefore, this 
Ordinance would be not only permitting a specified home occupation in a more restrictive 
Zoning District (and indeed would be the only home occupation permitted in that District), but 
would also be adding an additional home occupation (to wit: mental health counseling) which is 
not permitted in any of the 8 less restrictive Zoning Districts in which home occupations are 
presently permitted.  Thus it would be a unique and unusual exception to the present pattern of 
zoning in home occupations  
 
Due to the City Attorney’s concerns, Council voted to remand this back to the Planning Board 
for further research and discussion. 
 
On 20 June 2013, after careful review and discussion, with City Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr. in 
attendance, the Planning Board once again supported this request. 

 
Enclosures: 

1. Ordinance 13-17 
2. Planning Board Minutes 



CAF 13-33-A: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 3 of 6 

 

ORDINANCE  13— 17  
 
 
After receiving the recommendation of the Planning Board and after a duly advertised public hearing 
thereon, Councilperson ___________________________ introduced the following Ordinance which was 
seconded by Councilperson ______________________ and read: 
 

“AN ORDINANCE WITH AMENDMENTS TO SECTION 619B.3 OF THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE PERMITTING MENTAL HEALTH COUNSELING BY SPECIAL USE 

PERMIT AS A HOME OCCUPATION IN THE R6 (HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL), R8 
(MODERATE TO HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL), R11 (MODERATE DENSITY 

RESIDENTIAL), R8M (MODERATE TO HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL-HUD CODE 
HOME), R15M (MODERATE TO LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL-HUD CODE HOME), RA 

(RESIDENTIAL AND AGRICULTURAL), OI (OFFICE-INSTITUTIONAL),  AND OIA 
(OFFICE-INSTITUTIONAL “A”) ZONING DISTRICTS” 

 
The City Council of the City of Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain: 
 

Section 1.  That Article 600B of Section 619B.3 of the Zoning Code be amended by changing 
the words “and Surveyor” in the first paragraph to read:  “Surveyor, and Mental Health 
Counseling”. 
 
Section 2.  That Section 310A6.3 of the Zoning Code be amended by changing the words “& 
Surveyor” to read “Surveyor, & Mental Health Counseling”. 
  
Section 3.  The foregoing Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
passage. 
 

The foregoing Ordinance 13-17, upon motion of Council member ____________ and 
seconded by Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll call 
vote and received the following votes and was APPROVED/DISAPPROVED on this the ____ 
day of _______________, 2013:     YES:        . NO:      .  ABSTAIN:     .   ABSENT:      . 

 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 



CAF 13-33-A: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 4 of 6 

 

________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 4**, p. **. 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the foregoing Ordinance is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13—17, An 
Ordinance with Amendments to Section 619B.3, adopted by the Henderson, City Council in 
Regular Session on **  ** 20** (See Minute Book 4*, p. **.).  This Ordinance is recorded in 
Ordinance Book # 8, pp. **. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of  *** 20**. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 



CAF 13-33-A: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 5 of 6 

 

  

                   City of Henderson 
   Planning and Community Development Department 
Post Office Box 1434 / 134 Rose Avenue / Henderson, NC 27536-1434 

 Phone: (252) 430-5723         FAX:  (252) 492-7935 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE June 20, 2013 
PLANNING BOARD SPECIAL MEETING 

 
Recommendation to amend Section 619B.3 of the Zoning Ordinance to allow Mental 
Health Counseling as a home occupation in the R6 (High Density Residential), R8 
(Moderate to High Density Residential), R11 (Moderate Density Residential), R8M 
(Moderate to High Density Residential-HUD Code Home), R15M (Moderate to Low 
Density Residential-HUD Code Home), RA (Residential and Agricultural), OI (Office-
Institutional), OIA (Office-Institutional “A”) zoning districts by a Special Use Permit. 

  
Item was introduced by Zoning Administrator Sherry Moss. Moss reviewed items of the agenda 
packet and informed the board that City Attorney John Zollicoffer was present to address any 
concerns and questions they may have. Chairman Michael Rainey expressed concerns from 
document that was distributed to board members regarding mental health counseling. City 
Attorney Zollicoffer briefly addressed and discussed Section 619B.3 of the zoning ordinance. He 
added the board has the authority to put conditions on it. City Attorney Zollicoffer also stated if 
the board allows the use in one of the more restrictive districts (R15), then it needs to be allowed 
in all the other districts. Board Member Phil Walters addressed the board that mental health 
counseling should be allowed in the home occupations that are present in the areas in 619B.3 and 
still keep R15 restrictive because it is a highly restrictive section. Walters added he had concerns 
of allowing mental health counseling in the R15. Since R15 is a residential zoning area, it (R15) 
should be left like it is. Chairman Rainey asked since there is no mental health counseling as a 
hone occupation, can it be added to home occupation. City Attorney John Zollicoffer replied it 
can be added to home occupation and zoning districts and added it’s part of the recommendation.  
 
Ms. Frances Finamore was present to speak on behalf of the recommendation regarding mental 
health counseling. She expressed concern of why there is a problem extending this type of 
service in this particular area in the City of Henderson. Finamore addressed the board that 2 ½ 
blocks from where she resides is a group home and things like that. She stated she wouldn’t have 
people coming to live with her. She would have people come in by appointment, three (3) days a 
week, no interference with traffic, and providing a service that is necessary. Chairman Rainey 
addressed Finamore that the group homes she was referring to are not in home occupations. That 
is an established business or home. Finamore stated she doesn’t see the difference of someone 
making an appointment with a hairdresser or an architect. Chairman Rainey replied, at the 
present time, R15 are restricted and no home occupations are allowed in the R15.  
 
Board Member Marguerite Anduze questioned Finamore on how the patients are screened. 
Finamore replied she already has four clients that require services, but she can’t do anything 
right now and added what she planned on doing was getting a list of clients through the 

CAF 13-33-A 
Attachment #2 



CAF 13-33-A: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 6 of 6 

 

Veteran’s Association because she plans on servicing veterans. Finamore stated the reason for 
other clients other than veterans, is because she had other clients in other places where she 
previously worked.  
 
Motioned by Board Member Phil Walters to APPROVE the recommendation to amend Section 619B.3 
of the Zoning Ordinance to allow mental health counseling as a home occupation in the R6, R8, R11, 
R8M, R15M, RA, OI, and OIA by special use permit; Second by Board Member Marguerite Anduze; 5-0 
vote; AYES: Michael Rainey, Marguerite Anduze, Jimmie Ayscue, and Arthur Henderson, Phil Walters; 
NOES: None; ABSENT: Horace Bullock and Ricky Easter  

 



CAF 13-87: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 
16 July 2013 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 13-87 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-44 FY 14 Budget Amendment #5, 
Appropriating Fund Balance to Cover the Repairs to the Shelter at the Police 
Training Center 
 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Recommendation:   
 
 Approval of Ordinance 13-44- FY 14 Budget Amendment # 5, Appropriating Fund Balance 

to Cover the Repairs to the Shelter at the Police Training Center. 
 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
On March 30, 2013, a fire damaged the shelter and contents (grills, coolers, etc.) at the Police 
Training Center on Hwy 158 Business.   A claim was filed with the NC League of Municipalities 
(“League”) under the terms of the City’s property and liability insurance policy.  The claim was 
settled and a check from the League in the amount of $29,678.24 was received and deposited 
into the City’s account on June 26, 2013.  These funds will revert to fund balance during the 
fiscal year-end closeout process.  Therefore, fund balance is being appropriated in FY 2013-2014 
to cover the re-building of the shelter and the replacement of the items that were destroyed 
during the fire.   

Enclosure: 
 

1. Ordinance 13-44 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 22 July Short Reg. Meeting 



CAF 13-87: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 

 

O R D I N A N C E   13-44 
 

FY 2013—2014 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 5 
AN AMENDMENT TO THE GENERAL FUND and the CIP GENERAL FUND  

FOR A PROJECT TO RE-BUILD THE SHELTER AT THE POLICE TRAINING 
CENTER 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson on 27 June 2013 adopted the FY13-14 

Annual Operating Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council has created and uses a Capital Improvements Fund for active capital 

projects related to the General Fund, said fund referred to as 41: CIP General Fund; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating and capital improvements budgets from time-to-time.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Ordinance be approved, and said Ordinance shall be effective immediately 
upon approval of the City Council: 

 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-13 Budget Amendment Revised

 Fund Balance Appropriated 10-990-990999 153,000$      153,000$        29,700$          182,700$                    
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total 153,000$      153,000$        29,700$          182,700$                    
182,700$                    

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-13 Budget Amendment Revised

 Trans to: 41 CIP General 10-660-561041 -$             -$               29,700$          29,700$                      
   -$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             -$               29,700$          29,700$                      
29,700$                      

Variance -$               

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Trans fr: 10 General Fund 41-630-461010 -$             -$               29,700$          29,700$                      
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             -$               29,700$          29,700$                      
29,700$                      

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Capital Outlay-Bldg Impr 41-630-507404 -$             -$               29,700$          29,700$                      
  -$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             -$               29,700$          29,700$                      
29,700$                      

Variance -$               

FY 13-14 Budget Amendment #5

Notes:
To appropriate fund balance for amount of insurance proceeds received in June 2013 for the damage to the 
shelter at the Police Training Center and to transfer this amount to a CIP General project fund for the purpose 
of tracking the repairs.  This amendment also serves to establish the project budget for the re-building of the 
shelter.

41:  CIP GENERAL FUND REVENUES

Ordinance 13-44

Reference:
CAF# 13-87; Ordinance #13-44; BA# 5 

22 July 2013 Council Meeting

41: CIP GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

10: General Fund and 41: CIP General FundFUNDS:

10: GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

10: GENERAL FUND REVENUES

 
 



CAF 13-87: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 13-44, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was **** on this the 22nd day of July 2013:  YES:  . NO:  .   ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:   .             

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p.**; CAF 13-87 
  
 
 
 
 
__________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA - CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13-44  adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on ________________ 2013. This Ordinance is 
recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p.***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ****. 
_________________________ 
Esther McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 

 
 
 
 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager  

 
 



CAF 13-88: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 5 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

17 July 2013 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 13-88 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-45, Moving the Continuation of 
Privilege Licenses (For Businesses Who are Moving Their Location) From the City 
Council to the Finance Director to Insure Their Good Financial Standing with the 
City of Henderson  
 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:   
 
Core Values:   
 CV2:  Citizen/Customer Friendly:  We value our citizens and customers and will work with 

them in a courteous professional manner.  We value their participation and input and owe 
them an answer to their questions in a timely manner. 

 CV3:  Fairness:  We value equity and will be fair in how we work with citizens and 
customers and how we implement City policies, regulations and ordinances. 

 
 
Recommendation:   
 
 Approval of Ordinance 13-45, Moving the Continuation of Privilege Licenses (For 

Businesses Who are Moving Their Location) From the City Council to the Finance Director 
to Insure Their Good Financial Standing with the City of Henderson 
 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
It has come to our attention that Council must approve any transfer of a business license from 
one location to another, or from one firm to another if same is acquired.  The City Attorney and 
City Manager have reviewed a recent request from a business in good standing with the City to 
approve a transfer of its current business license from one location to another within the same 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 22 July 13 Short Reg. Meeting 



CAF 13-88: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 5 

 

shopping center.  In the interest of trying to be more business friendly, it is recommended this 
matter be approved administratively provided the business in in good standing with the City and 
has received in advance of the license transfer approval any and all other situs permits required, 
such as zoning, special use, etc. 
 
 
Enclosures: 
 

1. Ordinance 13-45 
2. City Code Section 3-6 

 
 



CAF 13-88: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 5 

 

ORDINANCE  13—45  
 
 

AN ORDINANCE MOVING THE CONTINUATION OF PRIVILEGE LICENSES  
(FOR BUSINESSES WHO ARE MOVING THEIR LOCATION) FROM THE CITY 

COUNCIL TO THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO INSURE THEIR GOOD FINANCIAL 
STANDING WITH THE CITY OF HENDERSON 

 
The City Council of the City of Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain: 
 
Section 1.  That the last sentence of Section 3.6 of the City Code is re-written to read as follows:  
 

“ If the business is moved or if the licensee sells to another, then a new license is 
necessary, unless a permit to continue business under the original license is obtained 
from the Finance Director who must also determine that the business is in good 
standing with its indebtedness to the City.” Additionally, any zoning and/or special 
use permits by the Board of Adjustment and/or Alcohol permits issued by the Chief 
of Police must be approved prior to the Finance Director approving the transfer.” 

  
 
Section 2.  The foregoing Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
passage. 
 
The foregoing Ordinance 13-45, upon motion of Council member __________________ and 
seconded by Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll call 
vote and received the following votes and was APPROVED/DISAPPROVED on this the ___ 
day of ______________, 2013:     YES:        . NO:      .  ABSTAIN:     .   ABSENT:      . 

 
       ____________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 4**, p. **. 
 
 
 



CAF 13-88: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 5 

 

 
 
_______________________________________ 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the foregoing Ordinance is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13—45,  An 
Ordinance Moving the Continuation of Privilege Licenses (for businesses who are moving their 
location) from the City Council to the Finance Director to Insure their good financial standing 
with the City of Henderson, adopted by the Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on **  
** 20** (See Minute Book 4*, p. **.).  This Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book # 9  pp. 
**. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of  *** 20**. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 



CAF 13-88: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 5 

 

  

 

 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 28 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
12 July 2013 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  13-81 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-59, Appointments to the Henderson 
Community Appearance Commission, Perry Memorial Library Board of Trustees, 
Henderson-Vance Human Relations Commission, Henderson Zoning Board of 
Adjustment and Henderson Planning Board  

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 

 
Recommendation: 
 
  Approval of Resolution 13-59, Appointments to the Henderson Community Appearance 

Commission, Perry Memorial Library Board of Trustees, Henderson-Vance Human 
Relations Commission, Henderson Zoning Board of Adjustment and Henderson Planning 
Board. 

 
Executive Summary 
 
The Boards and Commissions’ Committee (B&CC) met on 11 July 2013 to review applications 
for various committees and recommends the following appointments: 
 
Henderson Community Appearance Commission 
 1.  Mr. James Brown– Re-appoint as a full member with a term expiring on 30 June 2016. 
 2.  Ms. Grace O’Geary - Re-appoint as a full member with a term expiring on 30 June 2016. 
 3.  Mr. Solon Smith – Re-appoint as a full member with a term expiring on 30 June 2016. 
 
Perry Library Board of Trustees 
 1.  Mr. Robert Hubbard - Re-appoint as a full member with a term expiring on 30 June 2014.  
 2.  Ms. Diane Davis - Re-appoint as a full member with a term expiring on 30 June 2016. 
 
Henderson-Vance Human Relations Commission 
 1. Ms. Carol Franklin - Re-appoint as a full member with a term expiring on 30 June 2016. 
 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

       
 
 
 
Agenda Item:  
 
Council Meeting: 22 July 13 Short Meeting   



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 28 

 

Henderson Zoning Board of Adjustment 
 1.  Mr. Thomas Badger - Re-appoint as a full member with a term expiring on 30 June 2014. 
 
Henderson Planning Board 
 1. Mr. Arthur Henderson – Re-appoint as a full member with a term expiring on 30 June 

2014. 
 2. Mr. Mike Rainey – Re-appoint as a full member with a term expiring on 30 June 2015. 
 3. Mr. Horace Bullock – Re-appoint as a full member with a term expiring on 30 June 2016. 
 3. Mr. Jimmie Ayscue – Re-appoint as a full member with a term expiring on 30 June 2016. 
 4. Mr. Charles Douglas – Appoint as an Alternate with a term expiring on 30 June 2014. 
 
Enclosures: 
 1.   Resolution 13-59 
 2.   Applications   



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 28 

 

RESOLUTION 13-59 
A RESOLUTION MAKING APPOINTMENTS TO THE FOLLOWING 

COMMITTEES/COMMISSIONS: HENDERSON COMMUNITY APPEARANCE 
COMMISSION, PERRY  MEMORIAL LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES, 

HENDERSON-VANCE HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION,  HENDERSON ZONING 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT AND HENDERSON PLANNING BOARD  

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) has created several boards and commissions 

as a means to include citizen input to and participation within the governance process; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Council periodically appoints individuals to serve on said boards and 
commissions; and 

WHEREAS, there are vacancies on the following Committees/Commissions: Henderson 
Community Appearance Commission, Perry Library Board of Trustees, Henderson-
Vance Human Relations Commission, Henderson Zoning Board Of Adjustment and 
Henderson Planning Board; and 

WHEREAS, applications have been received and reviewed by the Henderson City Council  
Boards and Commissions’ Committee for available positions. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 
DOES HEREBY re-appoint the following individuals: 

1. Mr. James Brown, a city resident living at 155 West Belle Street. to serve on the 
Henderson Community Appearance Commission as a full member with a term expiring 
30 June 2016; and 

2. Ms. Grace O’Geary, a city resident living at 910 Meadow Lane, to serve on the 
Henderson Community Appearance Commission as a full member with a term expiring 
30 June 2016; and 

3. Mr. Solon Smith, a city resident living at 158 West Belle Street., to serve on the 
Henderson Community Appearance Commission as a full member with a term expiring 
30 June 2016; and  

4. Mr. Robert Hubbard, a city resident living at 2180 West Woodland Road, to serve on the 
Perry Memorial Library Board of Trustees as a full member with a term expiring 30 June 
2015; and 

5. Ms. Diane Davis, a city resident living at One Lakeside Drive, to serve on the Perry 
Memorial Library Board of Trustees as a full member with a term expiring 30 June 2016;  
and 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 28 

 

6. Ms. Carol Franklin, a city resident living at 1643 South Garnett Street Extension, to serve 
on the Henderson-Vance Human Relations Commission as a full member with a term 
expiring 30 June 2016; and 

7. Mr. Thomas Badger, a city resident living at 535 Deepwood Drive, to serve on the 
Henderson Zoning Board of Adjustment as a full member with a term expiring 30 June 
2014; and 

8. Mr. Arthur Henderson, a city resident living at 921 East Andrews Avenue, to serve on the 
Henderson Planning Board as a full member with a term expiring on 30 June 2014; and 

9. Mr. Mike Rainey, a city resident living at 2747 Fairview Drive, to serve on the 
Henderson Planning Board as a full member with a term expiring on 30 June 2015; and 

10. Mr. Horace Bullock, a city resident living at 129 South Bullock Street, to serve on the 
Henderson Planning Board as a full member with a term expiring on 30 June 2016; and 

11. Mr. Jimmie Ayscue, a city resident living at 1704 Lynne Avenue, to serve on the 
Henderson Planning Board as a full member with a term expiring on 30 June 2016; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT DOES 
HEREBY appoint the following individual: 

1. Mr. Charles Douglas, a city resident living at 113 South Garnett Street, to serve on the 
Henderson Planning Board as an Alternate with a term expiring on 30 June 2014. 

The foregoing Resolution 13-59, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member *** and having been submitted to a roll call vote during a regularly scheduled and open 
meeting, received the following votes and was APPROVED on this the 22nd day of July 2013:  
YES: NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: None. 

________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
_______________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p ***, CAF 13-81 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 28 

 

  

 

CAF 13-81 
Attachment #2 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 28 

 

 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 28 

 

 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 8 of 28 

 

 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 9 of 28 

 

 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 10 of 28 

 

 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 11 of 28 

 

 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 12 of 28 

 

 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 13 of 28 

 

 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 14 of 28 

 

 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 15 of 28 

 

 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 16 of 28 

 

 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 17 of 28 

 

 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 18 of 28 

 

 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 19 of 28 

 

 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 20 of 28 

 

 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 21 of 28 

 

 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 22 of 28 

 

 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 23 of 28 

 

 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 24 of 28 

 

 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 25 of 28 

 

 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 26 of 28 

 

 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 27 of 28 

 

 



CAF 13-81: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 28 of 28 

 

 

 



CAF 13-83: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 5 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 

9 July 2013 
 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 13-83  

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-61, Awarding of Departmental Handgun and 
Badge to Retiree Senior Police Officer Alvis L. Hawkins 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 6: Develop and Maintain a Qualified Municipal Workforce: To provide a supportive and 

competitive workforce climate that facilitates and maintains a strong workforce capability and 
capacity and adequate staffing levels. 

 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 13-61, Awarding of Departmental Handgun and Badge to Retiree Senior 

Police Officer Alvis L. Hawkins. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
Senior Police Office Alvis L. Hawkins joined the police force in January 1989 and will be retiring from 
the City of Henderson effective 31 July 2013.  Upon the recommendation of Interim Police Chief Marcus 
Barrow, I am requesting that the Henderson City Council recognize Officer Hawkins’ departure, as has 
been the case with previous retirees, by awarding him his departmental badge and service side arm as per 
NCGS 20-187.2:  “Badge and service side arms of deceased and retiring members of State, city and 
county law enforcement agencies” (See Enclosure No.2).   
 
It has been the tradition of the City of Henderson to award the retiring officer his/her badge at no cost and 
to also award the service side arm at the said price of $1.00. 
 
The weapon is Glock Model 22.40 caliber serial number PZK110. 
 
Enclosures 

1. Resolution 13-61 
2. Interim Chief Barrow’s Request 
3. NCGS 20-187.2 

 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  22 July 13 Short Meeting 
                        



CAF 13-83: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 5 

 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
13-61 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AWARD OF DEPARTMENT 

HANDGUN AND BADGE TO RETIREE  
SENIOR POLICE OFFICER ALVIS L. HAWKINS 

 
WHEREAS, Senior Police Officer Alvis L. Hawkins of the Henderson Police Department will 

be retiring with full benefits effective 31 July 2013; and, 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with North Carolina General Statutes 20-187.2 “Badges and service 

side arms of deceased and retiring members of State, City and County law enforcement 
agencies” which states that retiring members of such agencies shall receive upon request 
and at no cost to him/her, the badge worn. The governing body of such law enforcement 
agency may also award to a retiring member the service side arm at a price determined by 
such governing body, upon securing a permit as required by GS 14-402; and, 

 
WHEREAS, it has been the tradition of the City of Henderson to award the retiring officer 

his/her badge at no cost to him/her; and 
 
WHEREAS, it has been the tradition of the City of Henderson to award the retiring officer 

his/her weapon at a nominal cost to him/her. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT 

IT DOES HEREBY APPROVE the award of Departmental Badge and Service Side Arm 
(Glock Model 22.40 caliber, serial number PZK110) to retiree Senior Police Officer 
Alvis L. Hawkins at cost of $1.00 to him. 

 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Council thank Senior Police 

Officer Alvis Hawkins for his years of good service to the City and wish him well in his 
retirement. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 13-61, introduced by Councilmember ****** and seconded by 
Councilmember ****** on this the **** day of **** 2013, and having been submitted to a roll 
call vote, was approved by the following votes: Ayes:    Nays:   
    

__________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
  
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 



CAF 13-83: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 5 

 

John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 



CAF 13-83: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 5 

 

 

CAF 13-83 
Attachment #2 



CAF 13-83: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 5 

 

 

CAF 13-83 
Attachment #3 



CAF 13-84: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 
16 July 2013 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 13-84 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-43 FY 14 Budget Amendment # 4,  
Re-budgeting Lease Purchase Items not Delivered Prior to June 30, 2013 
 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Recommendation:   
 
 Approval of Ordinance 13-43- FY 14 Budget Amendment # 4, re-budgeting the purchase of 

lease purchase items not delivered prior to June 30, 2013. 
 
 

Executive Summary: 
 

At its regular meeting on April 8, 2013, Council approved a lease purchase financing agreement 
with SunTrust Equipment Financing and Leasing Corporation.  The agreement provided for the 
purchase of four pieces of equipment, a dump truck and tractor/bushhog for the sewer collection 
department and a backhoe and service truck for the water distribution department.  The 
tractor/bushhog and backhoe were delivered prior to June 30, 2013; however the dump truck 
and service truck will not be delivered until after July 1, 2013.  The unused proceeds of the 
financing agreement will revert to fund balance during the fiscal year-end closeout process.  
Therefore, those funds are being re-appropriated in the FY 2013-2014 fiscal year to cover the 
purchase of those two items once they are delivered. 

 

Enclosure: 
1. Ordinance 13-43 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 22 July 13 Short Reg. Meeting 



CAF 13-84: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 

 

O R D I N A N C E  13-43 
 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2013 -- 2014 BUDGET 
BUDGET AMENDMENT #4 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council), on 27 June 2013, adopted its FY 13-14 

Operating Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved a lease purchase financial arrangement with SunTrust Equipment 

Finance & Leasing Corporation at its meeting on 8 April 2013 via Resolution 13-31; and 
 
WHEREAS, not all of the equipment approved for purchase was delivered prior to 30 June 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual operating 

budget to re-budget the purchase of that equipment which was not received and/or delivered prior 
to 30 June 2013; and 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that the 

following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be effective 
immediately upon approval of the City Council: 

 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

 Fund Balance Appropriated 30-990-490999 -$             -$               30,000$          30,000$                      
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             -$               30,000$          30,000$                      
30,000$                      

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Water Distribution Capital Outlay > $5,000 30-318-507405 -$             -$               30,000$          30,000$                      
   -$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             -$               30,000$          30,000$                      
30,000$                      

Variance -$               

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Fund Balance Appropriated 31-990-490999 -$             -$               95,000$          95,000$                      
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             -$               95,000$          95,000$                      
95,000$                      

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Sewer Collection Capital Outlay > $5,000 31-828-507405 -$             -$               95,000$          95,000$                      
  -$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             -$               95,000$          95,000$                      
95,000$                      

Variance -$               

31: SEWER FUND EXPENDITURES

30: Water Fund and 31: Sewer FundFUNDS:

30: WATER FUND EXPENDITURES

30: WATER FUND REVENUES

Reference:
CAF# 13-84; Ordinance #13-43: BA# 4

FY 13-14 Budget Amendment #4

Notes:
To budget for the purhase of equipment that was part of the lease purchase agreement with SunTrust that was 
approved by Council at its regular meeting on April 8, 2013 and included in Budget Amendment #41 which was 
approved by Council at its regular meeting on June 24, 2013.  Four pieces of equipment were included in this 
financing:  a backhoe and service truck for Water Distribution and a tractor/bushhog and dump truck for 
Sewer Collection.  The backhoe and tractor/bushhog were delivered prior to June 30th; however the service 
truck and dump truck will not be delivered until after July 1st.  This will re-budget those purchases and 
appropriate fund balance in the water and sewer funds, where the unspent revenues will be "closed into" 
during the fiscal year closeout process.

31:  SEWER FUND REVENUES

Ordinance 13-43

 
 



CAF 13-84: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 13-43, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 22 day of July 2013:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   ABSENT:  **.             
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. ***; CAF 13-84 
 
____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13-39 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 22 July 2013 (Minute Book 42 p.**). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of July 2013. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
 
 
   
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 

 



 

CAF 13-86:  22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

16 July 2013 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF 13-86 

Consideration of Approval of Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the 
Month of June 2013.  

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of tax releases and refunds from Vance County for the month of June 2013. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The Vance County Tax office submitted the following tax releases and refunds to the Finance 
Department for the month of June 2013.  These releases and refunds are found to be in order and 
are being recommended for approval.  

 

 

June 2013 Tax Releases
Name Reason Tax Year Amount

Real & Personal Property
Releases
E & L Associates, LLC Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2009 17.32
E & L Associates, LLC Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2010 17.32
E & L Associates, LLC Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2011 17.32

DLP Maria Parham Medical
Org. Billed County only/ 
This is the City portion 

2012 -363,812.49

E & L Associates, LLC Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2012 17.32

Total R&P Property Releases -363,743.21

Real & Personal Property
Refunds 0.00

Total R& P  Property Refunds
Total R&P Prop. Rel. & Ref. (363,743.21)$       

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252-430-5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  22 July 13 Short Reg. Meeting 
 



 

CAF 13-86:  22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 

 

Tax Releases & Refunds June 2013- Continued 
 

 

Vechicle Releases
Blacknall, Elizabeth Young Pro-Rated 2012 15.79
Bryant, Alice Faye Pro-Rated 2012 1.06
Campos, Tomas Rodriguez Correct Situs 2012 28.25
Daye, Thurston Glenn Pro-Rated 2012 11.50
Green, Chez Darnell Pro-Rated 2012 65.66
Grice, Deborah Regina Pro-Rated 2012 2.54

Harris, Paul William
Org. Billed County only/ 
This is the City portion 

2012 -187.02

Kearney, Connie Elaine Pro-Rated 2012 15.56
The Salvation Army Non-Profit Exemption 2012 163.03
Trujillo, Oxcr Machado Pro-Rated 2012 3.24
Venable, Angela Lovell Pro-Rated 2012 36.82
Alliance Rehabilatative Care Charitable Organization 2013 95.64
Brewer, Thomas Britt Pro-Rated 2013 68.78
Bullock, Ray Anthony Correct Situs 2013 85.52
Dale, Josephine Reg. Veh Billed in Error 2013 12.75
Daughtrey, Richard Anthony Correct Value 2013 42.30
Drakeford, Freddie Jam Correct Situs 2013 110.27
Faulkner, Roy Hurst Pro-Rated 2013 6.40
Franklin, Vance Warren Opp Inc Government 2013 64.93
Harris, Sheldon Alphonso Pro-Rated 2013 3.42
Hilliard, Tom Edward Pro-Rated 2013 5.40
Lassiter, Gloria Jean Transfer Out 2013 123.96
Lee, Carolyn Fay Correct Situs 2013 100.44
Lewis, Edward Genatiou Pro-Rated 2013 51.80
Moore, Kathryn Dena Pro-Rated 2013 40.98
Pulley, David William Pro-Rated 2013 6.19

Ragland, Kimarlo Anto
Org. Billed County only/ 
This is the City portion 

2013 -18.78

Royster, Thomas Lee Correct Value 2013 11.67
Scana/ PSNC Energy State Assessed 2013 71.83
Shukair, Rand Adnan Correct Situs 2013 61.53
Stevenson, John Richard Correct Value 2013 43.00
Strickland, Taryn Michelle Correct Value 2013 22.91
Sutton, Sandra Bullock Pro-Rated 2013 4.13
Turner, William Durward Pro-Rated 2013 15.13
Wassum, Douglans Eugene Pro-Rated 2013 24.72
Williams, George Edward Correct Situs 2013 128.40
Williams, Pattie Lee Correct Situs 2013 41.94
Total Vehicle Releases 1,381.69$             



 

CAF 13-86:  22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 

 

Tax Releases & Refunds June 2013- Continued 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Vehicle Refunds
Gill, Donna Ann Pro-Rated 2012 7.75
Granger, Steven Theodore Pro-Rated 2012 24.66
Johnson, John Henry, Jr. Pro-Rated 2012 1.43
Mackenzie, Robert Paul Pro-Rated 2012 7.88
Phillip, Dale Meador MD Pro-Rated 2012 36.80
Stokes, Mirian Josefina Pro-Rated 2012 1.52
Talley, Shaneka Shanelle Pro-Rated 2012 2.95
Watkins, George Rose, Jr. Pro-Rated 2012 12.25
Williams, Sharon Pledger Pro-Rated 2012 47.43
Williams, Burchette Tameeka Las Pro-Rated 2012 8.80
Total Vehicle Refunds 151.47
Tot. Veh. Rel. & Ref. 1,533.16$             

Total All Releases & Refunds (362,210.05)$       



 

 
 
 
 

Office of the City Manager 
134 Rose Avenue, P. O. Box 1434, Henderson, NC  27536 

Phone 252.430.5701 : Fax 252.492.7935 :  E-mail rgriffin@ci.henderson.nc.us 
www.ci.henderson.nc.us  

 
 

19 July 2013 
 

TO: Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: Ray Griffin, City Manager 
 
RE: Final Tax Reform Impacts 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
The NCLM has provided member localities with a summary of the recently adopted State Tax 
Reform Bill’s impacts on the state-wide and locality-by-locality levels.  Thank goodness the final 
bill works well for Henderson as noted in Attachment No. 1.  For FY14, the analysis reveals the 
City’s revenues would be about $12,772 larger than current year.  Most importantly, the final 
bill’s impact reverses the estimated losses of revenue in years FY15—FY19.  
 
The final bill’s outcome appears to have eliminated the loss of revenues.  In FY 15, for example, 
it appears the City will gain $32,201 vs. losing $253,534.  While the gains are not that great, 
what is great is the fact the City will not suffer draconian losses of revenues.  This news now 
makes the FY15 Budget process far less ominous than would have been the case with the 
original Senate version.   
 
The estimated global impact of the Tax Reform Bill on the state at-large may be found in 
Attachment No. 2. 
 
We will be learning more about the Tax Reform Bill in the ensuing months.  As we learn more 
about the Bill’s impacts, I will share same with Council. 
 
Enclosures 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 
 
 



  

                Last Updated: 7/19/2013 10:33 AM 

Date Time Event Location 

July 26th 10:00 AM 
Henderson-Vance E911 
Advisory Board Meeting 

E911 Operations Center 

Aug 5th 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board  City Council Chambers 

Aug 6th 3:30 PM 
Henderson Zoning Board of 

Adjustment 
City Council Chambers 

Aug 8th 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Park & 
Recreations Commission 

Aycock Recreation Center 

Aug 12th  9:30 AM 
KLRW Advisory Board Meeting 

Please Note: on prev. calendar this 
meeting was incorrectly shown to be 

held at 12:00 pm.

City Hall Large Conference Room 

Aug 12th 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers  

Aug 13th 3:00 PM  Henderson Community 
Appearance Commission 

City Council Chambers  

Aug 26th  6:00 p.m. 
City Council Meeting 

Work Session to Follow 
City Council Chambers 

Sept 2 
City Hall 

Closed 
Labor Day Holiday Happy Holiday 

Sept 9 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board  City Council Chambers 

Sept 9 5:00 PM Library Board of Trustees Perry Memorial Library 

Sept 9 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers 

Sept 10 3:00 PM  Henderson Community 
Appearance Commission 

City Hall Large Conference Room 

Sept 10 3:30 PM 
Henderson Zoning Board of 

Adjustment 
City Council Chambers 

Sept 12 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Park & 
Recreations Commission 

Aycock Recreation Center 

Sept 19 7:00 PM  Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

Sept 23 6:00 PM 
City Council Meeting 

Work Session to Follow 
City Council Chambers 

Sept 27 10:00 AM 
Henderson-Vance E911 
Advisory Board Meeting 

E911 Operations Center 

Oct 1 3:30 PM Henderson Zoning Board of 
Adjustment 

City Council Chambers 

Oct 7 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board  City Council Chambers 

Oct 8 3:00 PM  
Henderson Community 

Appearance Commission 
City Council Chambers  

Oct 10 12:00 PM Henderson-Vance Park & 
Recreations Commission 

Aycock Recreation Center 

Oct 14 9:30 AM KLRW Advisory Board Meeting City Hall Large Conference Room 

Oct 14 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers 

Meetings and Events Calendar 

































 

 

HENDERSON POLICE DEPARTMENT  

MONTHLY REPORT  

JUNE 2013 

 

 

Marcus Barrow, Interim Chief of Police 

07/15/2013 
Fortitudo et iustitia 

 



HPD MONTHLY REPORT JUNE 2013 07/15/2013 

  
 

 

2 July 15, 2013 

Chief’s Comments 

 Marcus Barrow, Interim Chief of Police  

 

June 2013 was the first full month of activity of the Henderson Police Department since the 
departure of Chief Keith Sidwell to retirement. I am very pleased to report that at this time the 
state of the Police Department is sound and all of our staff have worked together to make the 
transition from Chief Sidwell’s leadership to our current Interim Chief status very smooth.  

We have continued to have monthly staff meetings of our Command Staff with some minor 
changes. We have trimmed down the number of people necessary to attend these meetings 
(preventing some comp time buildup) and are using Sharon Gregory’s meeting minutes to help 
keep all supervisors and staff “in the loop” of items discussed and decided at these meetings. 
Our focus at Staff Meetings has moved from “what has been done” to “what needs to be done”. 
Upcoming events, announcements and other issues that can be handled among the staff 
through email and division/unit level roll call and meetings are not scheduled for Staff Meeting 
review. Rather, we are focusing on problem solving for issues that need attention at the Staff 
level and data driven police responses to problem areas within the City as well as setting goals 
and objectives for each Section and/or Zone. 

All of our Division Commanders and Administrative Assistants worked extremely hard in June to 
finish all the requirements and final adjustments for the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 Budget. As the 
City Manager commented, this budget is VERY tough and there are no “frills” whatsoever in the 
Police Department’s budget from the original submission to the final approved budget. However, 
we were very pleased that several areas of need including continued upgrading of computers 
and hardware/software and equipment and contracted services needs for the department were 
funded at or near requested levels. We continue to be VERY cautious with our expenditures of 
Asset Forfeiture funding in the coming year as the outlay planned for FY 13-14 (due to the 
purchase of needed new vehicles) will put a severe dent in this account which will not soon be 
replaced due to the slowing of traffic interdiction involving high dollar amounts and local 
drug/weapons dealers using electronic payment methods instead of the old fashioned large 
quantities of cash.  

While we are continuing to address the rise (seen over the last several months) in aggravated 
assaults the department did see an overall comparative decrease of just over 1% in violent 
crime from this same period in 2012. A department focus in June 2013 to serve as many 
warrants and Orders for Arrest as possible may have been part of the reason for the downturn 
in Part I crimes in the past month.  

 



HPD MONTHLY REPORT JUNE 2013 07/15/2013 

  
 

 

3 July 15, 2013 

Operations Division  

 Lieutenant S.T. Vaughn, Acting Captain (Division Commander) 

Patrol Activity Summary by Patrol Section June 2013 

Section # Incidents Persons 
Arrested 

Collisions 
Investigated 

Citations 
Issued 

*Warrants 
Served 

Warrants 
Attempted 

Section 1 31 68 28 155 36 100 
Section 2 58 74 17 58 39 41 
Section 3 50 51 19 47 21 15 
Section 4 47 46 25 94 22 12 
Totals 186 239 89 354 118 108** 

 

*Warrants – This is a count of the number of occasions when a Warrant for Arrest, an Order for 
Arrest or a Criminal Summons were listed as the sole type of arrest for the person arrested and 
the date arrested was not the same as the date on the warrant. Each person is only counted 
once per arrest occasion, regardless of the number of warrants served.  

** - Sixteen (16) warrants were attempted by officers in the Criminal Investigations Division.  

Active Warrants on file by Section as of June 30, 2013 (Including Criminal Investigations) 

Zones Warrants OFA Worthless 
Check  

Criminal 
Summons 

Warrant 
for Child 
Support 

Fugitive 

Zone 1 60 145 2 13 3 0 
Zone 2 3 11 0 0 0 0 
Zone 3 65 98 0 3 1 0 
Zone 4 22 85 0 6 0 0 
CID 32 7 0 0 0 0 
Total 182 346 2 22 4 0 

 

As this chart shows the warrants received by the Henderson Police Department for “Order for 
Arrest” (meaning the wanted person did not show in court or violated a court appearance order 
or has a true bill of indictment) is almost twice the number of original warrants on file by the 
department. The number of persons wanted for missing court cases remains very high despite 
the issuance of bonds in some cases.  

 

 



HPD MONTHLY REPORT JUNE 2013 07/15/2013 

  
 

 

4 July 15, 2013 

OFFICER AWARDS 

At the Henderson Police Department Staff Meeting on Thursday, June 13, 2013 two Henderson 
Police Department officers were recognized by being awarded the department’s “Individual 
Commendation Award”.  As part of the agency’s efforts to recognize employees for exceptional 
work and performance the Department has an Employee Awards Program which provides 
recognition for officers and employees nominated by supervisors or co-workers for these 
awards.  

The Individual Commendation Award is issued to officers that have “performed efficient and 
valuable services to the Department…in the performance of duties over an extended period of 
time.” At the meeting both officers were recognized and received a Certificate of Award and a 
uniform Award Pin.  

Sergeant Jessica M. West received her award for performance of duties in 
2012 that resulted in her being named the Police Officer of the Year by the Henderson/Vance 
Optimist Club at their “Public Safety Appreciation Day” meeting. West was also recognized for 
her work as a volunteer coach and board member of the Vance County Special Olympics 
Program, being a volunteer and board member of the Vance County SafeKids Coalition, serves 
as a member of the Police Department’s Bicycle Patrol Unit, coordinated all Community Watch 
groups in housing areas or apartment complexes, established the Business Watch Program and 
served as the department’s alternative Crime Scene Technician in 2012 working several high 
profile cases. Sergeant West is now the department’s Evidence Custodian and primary Crime 
Scene Technician.  

Lieutenant Brandon Bishop received his award for performance of duties in 
2012 that resulted in his receiving the 2012 Lt. S.S. Pearson Officer of the Year Award from the 
Henderson/Vance CrimeStoppers organization. The award is presented at the group’s Awards 
Banquet each year and recognizes Henderson Police officers for notable efforts in the area of 
Crime Prevention and Community Services.  

Lt. Bishop was recognized for his work in preparing a Nuisance Abatement case against the 
property at 200 Parham Road (the former Kerr Lake Inn), his work in preparing the department’s 
“Operation L.O.C.K.” vehicle Breaking and Entering prevention brochures and his work as a 
Gang Identification Officer.  



HPD MONTHLY REPORT JUNE 2013 07/15/2013 

  
 

 

5 July 15, 2013 

CRIMINAL INVESTIGATIONS DIVISION 

 Lieutenant Christopher D. Ball, Division Commander 

  

Cases Received 53 

Cases Suspended 12 

Cases Cleared (Solved) 15 

Unfounded Reports Identified 1 

Crime Scene Searches Attended 2 

Crime Scene Searches Conducted 2 

Canvasses Conducted 4 

Witnesses Interviewed 96 

Warrants Obtained 105 

Warrants Attempted 15 

Warrants Served 33 

Juvenile Petitions Obtained 7 

Juveniles Taken Into Custody 1 

Social Services Referrals Made 1 

On-view Arrests Made 2 

Search Warrants Obtained 2 

Search Warrants Executed 1 

Informants Interviewed 18 

Property Recovered  14 

 

 



HPD MONTHLY REPORT JUNE 2013 07/15/2013 

  
 

 

6 July 15, 2013 

Case Highlights 

On June 19, 2013 around 1:00 AM, members of the Henderson Police Department received a 
report of a person who was shot at 111 S. Pinkston Street Apartment 1, Henderson. The victim 
was shot in the left hip area. Victim was transported by Vance County EMS for treatment at an 
area hospital. Injury did not appear to be life-threatening. There appeared to be no sign of 
forced entry to the apartment. Incident was further investigated by members of the Henderson 
Police Department Criminal Investigations Division. Dawan Marrow, 17, of 1903 NC 39 South 
Henderson, NC was arrested and charged with first degree burglary, and assault with a deadly 
weapon with the intent to kill inflicting serious injury. He received a $125,000 secured bond 
pending a court hearing on July 17, 2013. 

 
On June 26, 2013, members of the Henderson Police Department received a report that a 14 
year-old female was sexually assaulted by her uncle. The incident was reported to have 
occurred in a hotel room at the Sleep Inn, 18 Market Street, Henderson. The suspect allegedly 
provided the juvenile victim alcohol, and during that period conducted various sexual acts on the 
juvenile. Members of the Henderson Police Department Criminal Investigations Division were 
contacted to continue the investigation. Upon investigation, Clarence Adrian Royster, 34, of 
4592 Buckhorn Road Bullock, NC, was arrested and charged with one count of statutory rape, 
one count of statutory sex offence, indecent liberties with a child, incest with a child, and 
contributing to a delinquency of a minor. Mr. Royster received a $300,000 secured bond and 
remains in the Vance County Jail pending a court hearing on July 8, 2013. 
 

Juvenile Crime/Activities 

Students contacted/Released to Parents 4 
Students contacted/Released to Juvenile Services 1 
Juvenile Petitions 1 
Assault 12 
Neglect 7 
Larceny 1 
Undisciplined Juvenile 1 
Runaway 2 
Traffic Related 2 
Contacts 4 
Fight 1 

 

Property and Evidence/Crime Scene Technician Unit 

Number of items collected for the month;                  325 items 

Total amount of U.S. Currency collected;                                                       $0.00   

Total amount of firearms collected;                                                                 22 

Total amount of marijuana seized;                                                                  92.72 grams 

Total amount of cocaine seized;                                                                     4.21 grams 



HPD MONTHLY REPORT JUNE 2013 07/15/2013 

  
 

 

7 July 15, 2013 

Total amount of heroin seized;                                                               60 dosage units/8.4gm 

Total number of pills and prescription meds seized;                                       101 dosage units 

Total amount and type of other illegal substances seized;                              0                                                                                          

Total number of items returned to owner by court order;                                0 items 

Total number of evidence turned over to other agencies (see narrative);       0 items          

Total number of items returned to owner by officer request;                           13 items 

Total amount of U.S. Currency turned over to school board;                           $0 

Total number of items destroyed by court order;                                              1 

Total number of video cd made/copied;                                                           30 

Total number of in car videos copied to cd;                                                      4 CD/DVD 

Total number of copies of evidence (paperwork) for investigation;                  20 items  

Total number of evidence packages sent to SBI lab;                                       17 items  

 

Crime Scenes for month of June 2013:          2 

6-26-13 Larceny from Vehicle Rims/ Charles Boyd Pontiac 

06-30-13 Suspicious Death/331 Corbitt Road 

Total number vehicle processed;                   4 

Total of items processed at HPD;                   1                    

Total number of items seized;      38    

CALEA files turned in;        1 

Presentations;  

06-27-13  Female Veterans Symposium/VGCC  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



HPD MONTHLY REPORT JUNE 2013 07/15/2013 

  
 

 

8 July 15, 2013 

SPECIAL OPERATIONS DIVISION 

Lieutenant D. Allen Hedgepeth, Division Commander 

During the month of June the investigators of the Special Operations Division worked with ATF 
Agents and the US Attorney’s office and had six (6) individuals indicted at the federal level on 
weapons and narcotics charges.  Two of these individuals were taken into custody during the 
month by Henderson Police Department and ATF Agents and other assisting agencies.  

There was no activity involving the Henderson Police Department members of the North 
Carolina Secretary of State Anti-Counterfeiting Task Force as no cases of counterfeit materials 
were identified in this area recently. The Task Force continues to be available if needed and it is 
recommended that the Task Force status remain active at this time.  

Vice/Narcotics Unit  

Misdemeanor Arrests  8 
Felony Arrests 6 
Citations Issued 12 
Warrants served 23 
Search Warrants executed 2 
Heroin Seized 12 dosage units 
Prescription Medication Seized 86 
Marijuana Seized 34.5 grams 
Firearms Seized 4 
Training Completed 16 hours 

 

Power Shift 

Traffic Stops 63 
Assist Motorists 2 
Written Warnings  63 

 

 

 

 

 

 



HPD MONTHLY REPORT JUNE 2013 07/15/2013 

  
 

 

9 July 15, 2013 

SERVICES DIVISION  

Captain Perry L. Twisdale, Division Commander 

 
Staff Inspections Conducted 0 Line Inspection Reports Received 0 
Radio / Vehicle Equipment Repair 
Requests 

1 Equipment Repairs Completed  3 

Computer System repairs / upgrades 8 Employment Applications Received  1 
Background Investigations Completed  0 New Employees Hired  0 
Current Sworn Vacancies 1 Current F/T Civilian Vacancies 0 
Current P/T Civilian Vacancies 0   

 
Comments:  
 
During the month of June the Services Division updated six (6) General Orders and distributed 
these orders to all agency personnel for training and review.  
 
At the time of this report there are no vacancies within the department with the exception of the 
position of the Chief of Police. There are no anticipated vacancies until the retirement of Senior 
Police Officer Alvis L. Hawkins scheduled for July 31, 2013.  There are currently 12 applications 
on file and of those four are certified. We anticipate making a conditional offer to one of these 
applicants in July as Officer Hawkins’ retirement approaches.  
 
Members from NCLEAN conducted our CALEA Mock on-site on June 25 and 26, 2013. Ret. 
Major Ricky Buchannan of the Durham County Sheriff’s Office (now with NC Central University 
Police), Mike Dellinger the Accreditation Manager for the NC State Highway Patrol, Tim 
Johnson Accreditation Manager for the NC State University Police Department and Charles 
Brown of the Durham County 911 Center reviewed all file and made suggestions for the 
December On-Site. Lieutenant M.L. Perry attended the NCLEAN conference in Pine Knoll 
Shores and received further accreditation training.  
 
Services Division staff assisted with the final preparations and presentations of the 
Department’s Budget in June. Despite the departure of Chief Sidwell to retirement in May all 
budget submissions were presented to the City Manager and to the City Council on time and in 
a complete format.  
 
Five (5) vehicles that had been parked by the Police Department for sale as surplus were 
processed in June and all turned over with surplus paperwork to Edna Vaught at City Garage. 
Four (4) Ford Crown Victoria Police Sedans were stripped of equipment and emblems for sale. 
A Chevrolet Impala that was seized under Asset Forfeiture was stripped and the “secret 
compartment” device in the vehicle was removed so the vehicle can be sold. A Nissan Maxima 



HPD MONTHLY REPORT JUNE 2013 07/15/2013 

  
 

 

10 July 15, 2013 

also seized under asset forfeiture and used by Mr. Washington as a non-emergency vehicle 
was also parked due to age and needed repairs. One vehicle was returned to service for use by 
the Vice/Narcotics Unit. One (1) of the Ford Crown Victoria vehicles is being turned over to the 
Code Compliance Office for further use by the City.  
 
Crime Prevention/Community Services 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Event Date Presented by 
Fatherhood Day L.B. Yancey School 06-01-13 Lt. Robinson 
Clubs Together As One Event 06-01-13 Lt. Robinson 

/Burrell/Proctor 
Cotton Memorial Community event 06-01-13 Thorpe 
Safe Kids Car Seat check 06-11-13 Lt. Robinson/ Thorpe 
School Of Excellence tour 06-13-13 Lt. Robinson/ Thorpe 
Relay For life 06-14 & 15-13 Lt. Robinson / Thorpe 
Vance County Summer program Pre-k & 1st 
Grade 

06-17-13 Lt. Robinson/ Thorpe 

Vance County Summer program 2nd & 5th  Grade 06-18-13 Lt. Robinson/ Thorpe 
Kittrell Job Corp Safety presentation 06-24-13 Lt. Robinson/ Thorpe 
Clearview Church Community event 06-29-13 Lt. Robinson/ Thorpe 

 

Meeting Date Attended 
Safe Kids Board meeting 06-04-13 Lt. Robinson / Thorpe 
Special Olympics  06-05-13 Lt. Robinson / Thorpe 
League of Municipalities  06-05-13 Lt. Robinson 
Safe Kids 06-10-13 Lt. Robinson/Thorpe 
Crime Stoppers 06-12-13 Robinson/Thorpe 

Community Watch Group Date Attendance 
Hick’s Club Community Watch 06-03-13 21  
Fern wood Community Watch 06-04-13 12  
Coventry House Inn Community Watch 06-06-13 15  
Pinkston Street Community Watch 06-06-13 21  
White Oak & Lakeview Community Watch 06-10-13 20  
Lincoln Heights Community Watch 06-11-13 03  
Sage field Community Watch 06-13-13 10  
West Henderson Community Watch 06-18-13 10  
Alpha & Omega Community Watch 06-20-13 17  
Carolyn Care’s Community Watch 06-21-13 07 
Alpha & Omega Community Watch 06-20-13 17  
Woods 11 Community Watch 06-24-13 10  
Pine Raines Community Watch 06-25-13 12  
Heritage Homes Community Watch 06-26-13 16  
Vance Commons Community Watch 06-28-13 22  



HPD MONTHLY REPORT JUNE 2013 07/15/2013 

  
 

 

11 July 15, 2013 

Community meeting Greater Little Zion 06-12-13 Lt. Robinson / Thorpe 
HPD Staff Meeting 06-13-13 Lt. Robinson 
Act’s Board meeting 06-17-13 Lt. Robinson 
Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 06-20-13 Lt. Robinson/Thorpe 
Vance Gang Awareness Partnership 06-21-13 Lt. Robinson /Thorpe 
Community meeting with Joanne Boyette 06-21-13 Lt. Robinson 
Vance County Community Advisory Council 06-26-13 Lt. Robinson/Thorpe 
Henderson-Vance Night out  06-28-13 Lt. Robinson / Thorpe 

 

Volunteers In Police Services (VIPS) 

 

We currently have three (3) active VIPS members.  A meeting was held on June 18th by 
Services Division Staff in order to plan both a Citizens’ Police Academy and to solicit new VIPS 
candidates from successful students of that program. VIPS members volunteered 242 hours for 
the month of June 2013. Volunteers assisted officers with the June Safe Kids Car Seat Check, 
Relay for Life, and Fatherhood Day Community Event at L.B. Yancey School.  
 
Police Records and Crime Analysis 

The following are overall call activity and the most active types of calls for service by all 
divisions in the month of June 2013. Please note that not all responses to calls result in a written 
investigation or an arrest.  

Total Calls for Service  3183 
Total Responding units for all calls 5084 
911 Hang Up Calls 30 
Alarm Calls 103 
False Alarms 119 
Assist Motorist 42 
Assault Calls 40 
B&E Motor Vehicle 39 
Civil Disputes 59 
Disorderly Person 47 
Domestic Problem 40 
Drug or Alcohol Complaint 31 
Escorts 137 
Fight Report 39 
Harassment/Threat Reports 38 
Intoxicated Person 13 
General Investigation 566 



HPD MONTHLY REPORT JUNE 2013 07/15/2013 

  
 

 

12 July 15, 2013 

Loitering 12 
Loud Music 67 
Mental Subject/Commitment 32 
Property Damage 32 
Missing Persons 7 
Prowler 16 
Shots Fired Reports 38 
Suspicious Person 68 
Suspicious Vehicle 56 
Vehicle Stop 749 
Trespassing 75 
Warrant Service/Attempt 285 

 



HENDERSON POLICE DEPARTMENT
Part I Crimes

Month‐to‐Month and Annual Comparison

Change

2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013

Murder 1 3 1 1 2 4 100.0%
Rape 1 1 2 0 4 nc
Robbery 7 5 5 9 6 9 10 10 6 4 11 6 45 43 -4.4%
Agg Assault 6 11 3 14 5 7 6 18 6 15 6 13 32 78 143.8%

VIOLENT TOTAL 13 16 9 27 12 17 16 28 12 22 17 19 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 79 129 63.3%

Burglary 50 53 18 18 35 20 32 23 38 24 45 21 218 159 -27.1%

Larceny (Theft)

Pocket Pick 2 2 0 -100.0%
Purse Snatch 1 1 2 0 -100.0%
Shoplifting 44 56 35 32 41 45 48 62 47 50 48 51 263 296 12.5%
From MV 15 11 7 6 14 9 13 10 9 15 24 19 82 70 -14.6%
MV Parts 8 6 10 4 11 7 10 11 5 7 6 7 50 42 -16.0%
From Building 1 3 4 8 6 5 7 1 33 3200.0%
From Coin Machine 1 0 1 nc
All other 31 12 15 23 18 19 28 14 35 17 28 26 155 111 -28.4%

Larceny (Theft) Total 99 88 67 70 87 88 100 103 96 94 106 110 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 555 553 -0.4%

MV Theft 3 3 2 1 1 5 11 5 2 11 7 27 24 -11.1%

PROPERTY TOTAL 152 144 87 88 123 109 137 137 139 120 162 138 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 800 736 -8.0%

TOTAL INDEX OFFENSES 165 160 96 115 135 126 153 165 151 142 179 157 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 879 865 -1.6%

Note:

Jan Feb Mar Apr May

The preparer does not recommend public release of this data until verified and published by the State Bureau of Investigation. The figures and percentages represented here will change 
in coming weeks and months due to quality control revisions and other changes in crime classification, case status and case dispositions.

TOTALJul Aug Sep Oct Nov DecJun

Prepared by:  Charles R. Crumpler 7/8/2013



 

22 July 2013 Work Session Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
AGENDA 

Henderson City Council Work Session 
Monday, 22 July 2013 Immediately Following Regular Session 

R. G. (Chick) Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal Building 
134 Rose Avenue 

Henderson, North Carolina 
 

Mayor and City Council Members 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding 
 
Councilmember James C. Kearney, Sr. 
Councilmember Sara M. Coffey 
Councilmember Michael C. Inscoe 
Councilmember D. Michael Rainey 

 
Councilmember Brenda G. Peace—Jenkins  
Councilmember Garry D. Daeke 
Councilmember Vernon L. Brown 
Councilmember George M. Daye 

 
City Officials 
 
A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. ADJUSTMENTS TO AND/OR APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
IV. REGULAR WORK SESSION  

 
 a)   Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-41, FY14 Budget Amendment #3, Closing Out 

the Public Library Fund.  (CAF 13-14)  [See Notebook Tab 12] 
  
  ● Ordinance 13-41 
 
 b) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-55, Amendments to City Administrative Policies 

2.03 Definitions, 5.11 Part-Time Employment and 5.12 Temporary Employees, 6.06.00 
Dress and Appearance Policy and 4.13 Separation Pay.  (CAF 13-80)  [See Notebook Tab 13] 

 
  ● Resolution 13-55 



 

22 July 2013 Work Session Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 c) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-42, Providing for Limited Enforcement in the 

Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction Area (ETJ), Pursuant to Section 40 of the City Charter and 
Asking the Planning Board to Review and Provide a Recommendation on Same to the City 
Council.  (CAF 13-82)  [See Notebook Tab 14] 

 
  ● Ordinance 13-42 
 
 d) Consideration of Approval of 1) Resolution 13-21-A, Accepting the North Carolina 

Governor’s Highway Safety Program Grant in the Amount of $18,300 for the Purchase of 
Traffic Enforcement Equipment; and 2) Ordinance 13-46, FY14 Budget Amendment #6, 
Establishing Budget for Said Grant. (CAF 13-27-A) [See Notebook Tab 15] 

 
  ● Resolution 13-27-A 
  ● Ordinance 13-46 
 
 e) Water Deposit & Fees Discussion.  (CM 13-15)  [See Notebook Tab 16] 
 
 f) General Projects Update [See Notebook Tab 17] 
   
V.    ADJOURNMENT 



CAF 13-14: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 
10 July 2013 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 13-14 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-41 FY14 Budget Amendment #3, 
Closing Out the Public Library Fund 
 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Recommendation:   
 
 Approval of Ordinance 13-41 FY14 Budget Amendment # 3, Closing Out the Public Library 

Fund. 
 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
The Public Library Fund was established years ago when a portion of the property tax was used 
to help finance the library.  Contemporary inter-local agreements between the City and Vance 
County provide for a cost sharing plan which is currently 25% City and 75% County.  Thus, 
utilization of this fund is no longer needed as it has become archaic.  The Library’s annual 
budget request is now reflected in the General Fund along with other County shared programs.  
This amendment serves to close out the Public Library Fund and transfer the remaining funds to 
the General Fund. 

 

Enclosure: 
 

1. Ordinance 13-41  

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 22 July 13 Work Session 



CAF 13-14: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 

 

O R D I N A N C E  13-41 
 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2013 – 2014 BUDGET 
BUDGET AMENDMENT #3 CLOSING OUT FUND 40: PUBLIC LIBRARY 

FUND  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council), on 27 June 2013, adopted the 
FY 13-14 Operating Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council had heretofore created and used a Public Library Fund for accounting 

for revenues and expenditures of the Public Library; and 
 
WHEREAS, the utilization of the Public Library Fund is no longer needed and the Library’s 

annual budget request is now being reflected in the General Fund and, therefore, it is 
necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual operating 
and Public Library Fund to effect closeout of the Public Library Fund, said amendment 
being incorporated into this Ordinance; and  

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council and the NC Department of 
Commerce: 

 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-13 Budget Amendment Revised

 Fund Balance Appropriation 40-990-490999 -$             -$               461$               461$                            
  -$             -$               -$                -$                            

Total -$             -$               461$               461$                            
461$                            

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-13 Budget Amendment Revised

 Trans to: 10 General Fund 40-850-561010 -$             -$               461$               461$                            
-$             -$               -$                            
-$             -$               -$                -$                            

Total -$             -$               461$               461$                            
461$                            

Variance -$               

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-13 Budget Amendment Revised

 Trans fr: 40 Public Library Fund 10-980-461040 -$             -$               461$               461$                            
-$             -$               -$                -$                            

Total -$             -$               461$               461$                            
461$                            

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-13 Budget Amendment Revised

 Reserve 10-660-900999 -$             -$               461$               461$                            
-$             -$               -$                -$                            

Total -$             -$               461$               461$                            
461$                            

Variance -$               

Ordinance 13-41

PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND EXPENDITURES: 40

22 July 2013 Meeting; CAF 13-14; Ordinance 13-41; BA #3 To transfer remaining funds from the Public Library Fund to the General Fund.  This fund is no longer being 
utilized.  The Library's annual budget request is reflected in the General Fund along with the other Vance 
County Shared Programs.

PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND REVENUES: 40

Reference: Notes:

FUNDS: 40: Public Library Fund and 10: General Fund
FY13-14 Budget Amendment # 3

 

  

GENERAL FUND REVENUES:  10

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES: 10

 



CAF 13-14: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 
The foregoing Ordinance 13-41 upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 22 day of July 2013:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   ABSENT:  **.             
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. ***; CAF 13-14 
 

____________ 
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13-30 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 22 July 2013 (Minute Book 42 p.**). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of July 2013. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
 
 
 
 
   
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 

 



CAF 13-80: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 11 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

17 July 2013 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF:  13-80 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-55, Amendments to City Administrative 
Policies  2.03 Definitions, 5.11 Part-Time Employment and 5.12 Temporary Employees, 
6.06.00 Dress and Appearance Policy and 4.13 Separation Pay. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen:   
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 6: Develop and Maintain a Qualified Municipal Workforce – To provide a supportive and 

competitive workforce climate that facilitates and maintains a strong workforce capability and 
capacity and adequate staffing levels. 

 
Recommendation: 
 
Approval of Resolution 13-55, Amendments to City Administrative Policies  2.03 Definitions, 5.11 Part-
Time Employment and 5.12 Temporary Employees, 6.06.00 Dress and Appearance Policy and 4.13 
Separation Pay. 
 
Executive Summary:  
 
The City is committed to promoting an efficient and effective work environment for all employees. New 
Federal regulations regarding Part-Time employment (Policies 2.03, 5.11 and 5.12) require a pro-active 
response.  The Affordable Care Act as approved will require that Part-Time employees which average 
working 30 hours a week be offered medical insurance.  A policy to define Part-Time employment and to 
establish guidelines for supervisors is critical.  No action could potentially become a liability to the City’s 
budget. 
 
The current Administrative Guide lacks language which defines or set standards of Professional Dress.  
The Safety and Service Department are provided uniforms which are required to be worn when on duty.  
The one statement reference in the Policy to dress and appearance is the expectation of “professional 
dress”.  The propose policy addresses what is and is not appropriate dress for City employees.  It provides 
guidance on professional dress, appearance and hygiene.    
 
The Separation Pay policy was amended to include examples of situations which would warrant the 
forfeiture of accumulated annual leave.  A list of egregious violations that is inclusive of the examples but 
not limited. 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Resolution 13—55 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item:        ______________ 
 
Council Meeting:   22 July 13 Work Session 

 



CAF 13-80: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 11 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 13—55 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING 
AMENDMENTS TO CITY ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES   

2.03 DEFINITIONS, 5.11 PART-TIME EMPLOYMENT AND  
5.12 TEMPORARY EMPLOYEES, 6.06.00 DRESS AND APPEARANCE POLICY  

AND 4.13 SEPARATION PAY 
 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in January 

2012, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and Goals; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one of these Key Strategic Objectives as follows: KSO 6: Develop 

and Maintain a Qualified Municipal Workforce – To provide a supportive and competitive 
workforce climate that facilitates and maintains a strong workforce capability and capacity and 
adequate staffing levels; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council provides personnel policies that provide for the proper 

administration of Human Resources; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is appropriate to amend the policies from time to time; and 
 
WHEREAS, Administrative Policies, 2.03 Definitions, 5.11 Part-Time Employment and 5.12 Temporary 

Employees, 6.06.00 Dress and Appearance Policy and 4.13 Separation Pay are amended to 
promote an effective and efficient productive work environment for all employees  

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT DOES 

HEREBY APPROVE the amendments to Administrative Policies, 2.03 Definitions, 5.11 Part-
Time Employment and 5.12 Temporary Employees, 6.06.00 Dress and Appearance Policy and 
4.13 Separation Pay being more fully articulated in  Attachments A, B and C to this Resolution.   

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL that the afore referenced 

Administrative Policies shall be effective on the adoption date of this Resolution. 
  
The foregoing Resolution 13-55, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council Member **, 
and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was ***** on this the *** 
day of **** 2013:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 

_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
____________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
Approved to Legal Form: 
_______________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 

 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 13-80: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 11 

 

Resolution 13-55 
       Attachment A 

2.03  DEFINITIONS: 
 

(a) Full-time Employee.  An employee who is regularly scheduled to work the 
number of hours per workweek designated by the City Council as full-time.  In 
the absence of any contrary definition, full-time shall be at least thirty   (30) hours 
of work per workweek. 

 
(b) Regular Employee.  An employee who has successfully completed the prescribed 

employee in training periods shall be considered a regular employee.  However, 
all City positions are subject to budget review and approval each year by the City 
Council, all employees’ work and conduct must meet standards of performance 
and behavior, and all employees are employed “at will”.  Therefore, reference to 
“regular” employees or permanent positions should not be construed as a contract 
or right to perpetual funding or employment. 

 
(c) Employee in Training.  A person appointed to a budgeted position who has not 

yet completed the employee in training period. 
 
(d) Part-time Employee.  An employee, either regular or temporary, who is regularly 

less than the number of hours per workweek designated by the City Council as full 
time scheduled either for twenty-eight (28) hours a week or less, for a period not to 
exceed thirty-five (35) weeks in a calendar year or nineteen (19) hours a week 
annually. 

 
(e) Temporary Employee.  A person appointed to serve in a position for a defined time 

period, usually less than six months. 
 

(f)  Grievance  A claim or complaint based upon an event or condition which affects the 
circumstances under which an employee works, allegedly caused by 
misinterpretation, unfair application, or lack of established policy pertaining to 
employment conditions. 

 
 
 



CAF 13-80: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 11 

 

                                Resolution 13-55 
          Attachment A, Page 2 

5.11  PART-TIME EMPLOYMENT: 
 
Part-time employees who are not appointed to regular full-time positions do not accrue vacation 
leave, sick leave, holidays or other benefits afforded to regular full-time employees.   
 
Part-time employees must not be scheduled to work more than one thousand (1000) hours in a 
calendar year nor average more than twenty-eight (28) hours for a sustained period of time not to 
equal or exceed thirty-five (35) weeks or less. Part-time employees working year-round should 
average nineteen (19) or less hours per week to be in compliance.  Department supervisors will be 
held accountable for non-compliance (if exceeding 35 hours per week). 
 
5.12  TEMPORARY EMPLOYEES: 
 
Temporary employees may be hired for various seasonal jobs for certain periods of time, but not to 
exceed six (6) months.  Temporary employees may be hired with the approval of the City 
Manager.  The rate of pay shall typically be competitive with pay for similar labor in the 
Henderson/Vance County labor market. 
 
All benefits of a regular full-time employee such as insurance, vacation leave, sick leave, holidays, 
retirement benefits, etc., will begin to accrue to the employee after acceptance of regular full-time 
employment. 
 
Temporary employees shall not be scheduled to work more than one thousand (1000) hours in a 
calendar year. The temporary, seasonal employee should be employed for certain periods not to 
exceed six (6) months in order to comply. Department supervisors are accountable for compliance. 
 
 



CAF 13-80: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 11 

 

Resolution 13-55 
                                                                                 Attachment B 

 
6.06.00  DRESS AND APPEARANCE POLICY 
 
PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this policy is to establish the City’s guidelines for the appearance of City of 
Henderson employees when performing duties and conducting business for the City and to ensure 
all employees project and maintain a positive public image at all times.  See Section 8.11 
(Uniforms) of the Administrative Policy for dress requirements for the Public Safety sector and 
other classes of employees.  
 
City of Henderson employees are expected to represent the City to its citizens and general public 
in an exemplary manner both in conduct and appearance at all times.  City employees should 
always be well-groomed and dressed in a manner suitable for the public service environment and 
in attire that allows the employee to work comfortably in the workplace.   
 
As all casual clothing is not suitable for the office, these guidelines will help employees 
determine what is acceptable to wear to work.  Clothing that works well for leisure time 
generally will not be appropriate for a professional appearance at work. 
 
Because of the changing nature of fashion, regulations pertaining to acceptable employee attire 
and grooming are flexible; however, there are certain expected norms of professional 
appearance, personal neatness, cleanliness, and good grooming which are applicable to all 
employees.   
 
 
  GENERAL MINIMUM GUIDELINES 
 
A.  All clothing should be neat, clean, pressed or wrinkle-free, in good condition, without holes 
or fraying, with finished seams, and in keeping with the nature of the duties performed. 
 
B.  Any clothing that has words, terms or pictures that may be offensive to others is 
unacceptable.  Also inappropriate is clothing that promotes alcoholic beverages, tobacco, the 
use of controlled substances, depicts violence, and is of a sexual nature, of a disruptive nature, 
or of a political nature. 
 
C.  Clothing that reveals too much cleavage, your back, your chest, your stomach, or your 
underwear is not appropriate for a place of business.  Clothing must not be provocative, 
revealing, low-cut, indecent, vulgar, obscene, or profane. 
 
D.  Clothing that is tight-fitting, see-through or otherwise revealing, including skirts and 
dresses that are too short and blouses that are too low or too short, is not appropriate at any 
time.  Dress and skirt length should be at a length at which the wearer can sit in public without 
being revealing. 

 
 



CAF 13-80: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 11 

 

 
 

                                                                                                              Resolution 13-55 
                                                                                                                                Attachment B, Page 2 

GENERAL MINIMUM GUIDELINES (continued) 
 
E.  Extravagant and extreme styles and attire are not in good taste in a public service 
environment. 
 
F.  Employees in departments requiring uniforms must adhere to the uniform code of dress 
appropriate for that department. 
 
G.  Reasonable accommodations shall be made for employees who, because of a sincerely held 
religious belief of a recognized religious organization, cultural heritage, or medical reason, 
request a waiver of a particular part of this policy for dress or appearance.   
 
H.  Violations of the policy can range from inappropriate clothing items to offensive perfumes 
and body odor.   
 
NON-COMPLIANCE GUIDELINES 
An employee’s department head and/or supervisor will discuss the subject of personal 
appearance with the employee if it is felt it does not positively reflect the image of the City.  
Any employee deemed to be inappropriately dressed or groomed will be asked to return home 
in order to correct the unacceptable infraction.  Employees will not be compensated for the 
time they do not work as a result unless vacation leave or compensatory time is used.  
Repeated violations will be subject to further disciplinary action up to and including dismissal. 
 
This Dress and Personal Appearance Policy shall remain flexible and shall be reviewed and 
updated on a regular basis.  It has been formulated to be fair and uniform, not overly 
restrictive, and still allow employees to retain their personal style.  This policy is also intended 
to take into consideration any health, medical or religious needs that employees may encounter 
with the guidelines herein established. 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



CAF 13-80: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 11 

 

 
 
 
 

                                         Resolution 13-55 
Attachment B, Page 3 

 
 
 

     CITY OF HENDERSON 
                   Post Office Box 1434                      
                     134 Rose Avenue                          
   Henderson, North Carolina 27536-1434 
Phone:  (252) 430-5706    FAX:  (252) 492-7935 
 
 

 
DRESS AND PERSONAL APPEARANCE POLICY 

 
 

By my signature I, __________________________________, hereby acknowledge that I have 
been provided a copy of the City of Henderson’s Dress and Personal Appearance Policy and 
Handout.  I also acknowledge that I understand and will comply with the provisions of this 
policy and any amendments as they are properly issued.   
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________  ________________________ 
Employees Signature       Date 
 
 
____________________________________  ________________________ 
Witness        Date 



CAF 13-80: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 8 of 11 

 

                                                                                                                 Resolution 13-55 
                                                                                                                                                    Attachment B, Page 4 
 

 
DRESS AND PERSONAL APPEARANCE  

 HANDOUT 
 
 
 EXAMPLES OF APPROPRIATE & INAPPROPRIATE DRESS 
 

A. Slacks, Pants, Suit Pants 
 

APPROPRIATE 
a. Similar to Dockers and other makes of cotton or synthetic material pants 
b. Wool or flannel pants 
c. Dressy crop/Capri pants 
 
INAPPROPRIATE 
a. Pants worn below the natural waist, i.e., hip huggers, low riders 
b. Denim blue jeans, unless approved for a specific event or job task, i.e. casual Fridays; 

must be without holes or fraying, with finished seams 
c. Sweatpants, athletic outfits, jogging suits, wind suits, exercise pants 
d. Shorts, unless approved for a specific event or job task, skorts, culottes, Bermuda 

shorts, short shorts, cutoffs, jean shorts  
e. Bib overalls 
f. Leggings 
g. Any spandex or other form-fitting pants such as people wear for biking 
 
 

B.  Skirts, Dresses, Jumpers, Skirted Suits 
 
 APPROPRIATE 
a. Casual dresses and skirts 
b. Skirts split at or below the knee 
c. Jumpers 
 
 
INAPPROPRIATE 
a. Micro-mini skirts, mini skirts, sun dresses, beach dresses, or any other dresses higher 

than three (3) inches above the knee 
b. Dresses with spaghetti straps 
c. Backless dresses without a jacket or cover-up 
d. Dresses with inappropriate cutouts, excessive armpit cutouts, or see-through elements 
e. Dresses that do not cover the back, waist and midriff 
 

 
 
 



CAF 13-80: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 9 of 11 

 

 
 

                                                                                                                                                 Resolution 13-55 
                                                                                                                                                       Attachment B, Page 5 

 
 

EXAMPLES OF APPROPRIATE & INAPPROPRIATE DRESS 
continued 

 
C.  Shoes, Footwear 

 
APPROPRIATE 

a. Conservative athletic or walking shoes 
b. Loafers 
c. Clogs 
d. Boots 
e. Flats, open & closed toe 
f. Dress shoes & dress heels, open & closed toe 
g. Leather deck-type shoes 
h. Sandals 
 

INAPPROPRIATE 
a.  Flashy athletic shoes 
b.  Flip-flops 
c.  Bedroom slippers 
d.  Bare feet 
 

D.  Hats, Head Coverings, Head Gear 
 

APPROPRIATE 
a. Head gear designed for safety or protection when employee works outdoors or when 

performing duty indoors that requires such protection 
b. Head coverings that are required for religious purposes 
c. Head coverings worn to honor cultural traditions 
 

INAPPROPRIATE 
In accordance with common courtesy and tradition, all hats, including baseball caps, shall 
not be worn by employees working in City offices.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



CAF 13-80: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 10 of 11 

 

 
 
 
 

                                                                                                                                               Resolution 13-55 
Attachment B, Page 6 

 
 

EXAMPLES OF APPROPRIATE & INAPPROPRIATE DRESS 
continued 

 
A.  Jewelry 

 
a. Conservative earrings, necklaces, bracelets, watches, rings, and ankle bracelets are 

permitted. 
b. Jewelry must not interfere with an employee’s ability to perform his/her job duties. 
c. All jewelry should be in good taste. 
d. Jewelry should not be worn in excessive amounts. 
e. Jewelry should not be overly gaudy or ostentatious. 
f. Visible body piercing should be limited and the wearing of facial jewelry, such as nose 

rings, tongue rings, and lip and eyebrow rings, are not allowed at work or at any City 
function.   

 
B.  Makeup, Perfume, Cologne 

 
Because some people are allergic to the chemicals in perfumes and make-up, these 
substances should be worn with restraint. 
 

C. Hair, Hairstyles 
 

 Extreme hairstyles and hair colors, such as hair dyed pink, purple, green, blue, etc., are 
inappropriate for the workplace.  Hair should be neat in appearance and clean.  Facial 
hair and general hair length should be an appropriate length to reflect a professional 
appearance and be safe in the workplace. 

 
D.  Tattoos 

 
 Tattoos bearing offensive language or logos that are or could be seen by others as  
 profane, racist, sexist or discriminatory in nature are to be covered.   
 



CAF 13-80: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 11 of 11 

 

Resolution 13-55 
Attachment C 

 
4.13  - SEPARATION PAY: 
 
An employee who is separated shall be paid for annual leave accumulated to the date of separation 
not to exceed the maximum allowed provided he/she has completed six (6) or more months of 
continuous service and provided he/she has submitted and worked a two-week notice.  Department 
heads shall submit a written resignation and work a minimum four-week notice.  An employee 
who is involuntarily separated without fault or delinquency on his/her part shall be paid for annual 
leave accumulated to the date of separation not to exceed the allowable maximum for 
accumulation purposes.  Compensation for accumulated annual leave shall not be paid to an 
employee dismissed for cause or delinquency or who does not submit the required notice or does 
not surrender any and all City issued or provided equipment, and any office or City related 
materials and document. as outlined in Section 10.03 DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS subsection 
grossly inefficient job performance and: 
 

 
(a) Falsification of mandated reporting to the State or Federal government 

  
  (b) Failure of drug and/or alcohol screening 
 
  (c) Violence in the workplace 
 
  (d) Theft of City property 
 
  (e) Conviction of a felony 
 
Employees who does not submit the required notice to separate or obtain written permission from 
their supervisor to leave at an earlier agreed upon date will be subject to forfeiture of accumulated 
annual leave.  Also, anyone that does not surrender any and all City issued or provided equipment, 
and any office or City related materials and document will have the final pay handled in 
accordance with N.C. G.S. §95-25.8. 

 
(a) Final pay will be made after all documented indebtedness to the City has been paid in full, 

(in accordance with N.C.G.S. §95-25.8) and all supplies formerly in the possession of said 
employee have been accounted for in proper condition. 

 
(b) Separation pay will include the maximum amount of leave that is allowable for 
accumulation purposes as defined in Section 9.05 of this manual. 
 



CAF 13-82: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 11 

 
 
 
 
 

 
_______________________________________ 

17 July 2013 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF: 13-82 

Approval of the Concept of Ordinance 13-42, Providing for Limited Enforcement in the 
Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction Area (ETJ), Pursuant to Section 40 of the City Charter and 
Asking the Planning Board to Review and Provide a Recommendation on Same to the City 
Council 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen:  

 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:   
 
 KSC 6: Improving City Services: In order to ensure City’s resources are being utilized in the most 

cost efficient and effective manner, it is critical that the City’s work process and service delivery 
system be examined and improved in order to achieve its mission. 
 

Recommendation:   
 
 Approval of the Concept of Ordinance 13-42, Providing for Limited Enforcement in the Extra-

Territorial Jurisdiction Area (ETJ), Pursuant to Section 40 of the City Charter and Asking the 
Planning Board to Review and Provide a Recommendation on Same to the City Council 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
On April 24, 2006, the City of Henderson adopted an ordinance providing enforcement of the following 
City Charter: Chapter 7: Abandoned/Junked Vehicles; Chapter 21: Minimum Housing Abandoned 
Structures, Summary Abatement; and Chapter 23: Nuisances and Weeded Lots. The ordinance allowed 
enforcement throughout the Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ), which extends 1½ miles beyond the City 
limits creating a large area to aggressively enforce applicable codes of property maintenance. The original 
purpose of the 2006 ordinance was to allow enforcement of the 2005 David Street Community 
Development Block Grant.   
 
Since that time, the Department’s staffing has been reduced by one-third and operating funding is less.  
The ability to effectively enforce code compliance in the ETJ except where properties are divided by the 
city limit line, activities are funded via a grant, as well the case with the David Street CDBG project, or 
when there is an immediate need to resolve an issue that is having an adverse impact on the health, safety 
and welfare of citizens of Henderson or the interest of the City of Henderson, is limited.  At this point, 
Code Compliance cannot even keep up with the need for enforcement within the city limits.  Additionally, 
code compliance activities are funded with general funds.  Given the very constrained budgets facing the 
City, the efficacy of spending general tax dollars for demolition in the county, when there are insufficient 
funds to resolve the backlog of similar properties within the city, is questionable. 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 22 July 2013 Work Session 



CAF 13-82: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 11 

Should Council wish to proceed with this item, a request must be made to the Planning Board for its 
review, conducting a public hearing and recommendation back to council.  Upon receipt of such 
recommendation, Council may then conduct a public hearing and subsequently decide if it wishes to 
approve the ordinance amendment.   
 
Enclosure: 

1. Ordinance 13-42 
2. Background Information 



CAF 13-82: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 11 

ORDINANCE  13-42 
 
After receiving the recommendation of the Planning Board and after a duly advertised public hearing 
thereon, Councilperson ___________________________ introduced the following Ordinance which was 
seconded by Councilperson ______________________ and read: 
 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR LIMITED ENFORCEMENT IN THE EXTRA-
TERRITORIAL JURISDICTION, PURSUANT TO SECTION 40 OF THE CITY CHARTER, 

OF THE MINIMUM HOUSING CODE; ABANDONED STRUCTURES ORDINANCE; 
SUMMARY ABATEMENT OF NUISANCES ORDINANCE; WEEDED LOT ORDINANCE; 

AND JUNKED, ABANDONED AND NUISANCE MOTOR VEHICLES ORDINANCE 
 
The City Council of the City of Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain: 
 
Section 1.  That the following language be inserted in the following places of the City Code of 
the City of Henderson:  
 
 The language to be inserted is: 
 

“Notwithstanding the above activity, the powers set forth herein shall not be enforced 
by the City in the ETJ unless funding is provided for specific enforcement within the 
ETJ via grants, funding from Vance County or from the City Council or other 
sources.  On the other hand, said enforcement shall be allowed when the property is 
divided by the city limit line, and/or if the City Manager specifically finds either that 
a particular property in proximity to the city limits is having an adverse impact on the 
health, safety and welfare of a Henderson citizen or property or that the same is 
necessary in the best interest of the City of Henderson as it relates to the overall 
health, safety and welfare of the citizens of Henderson.” 
 
The above language is to be inserted in the following places: 
 

(a) Following the first sentence of Section 7-114 of the City Code 
(relative to Junked, Abandoned and Nuisance Vehicles Ordinance). 

(b) Following the first sentence of Section 21-2 of the City Code (relative 
to Minimum Housing Code). 

(c) Following the first sentence of Section 21A-1 of the City Code 
(relative to Abandoned Structures). 

(d) Following the first sentence of Section 21B-1 of the City Code 
(relative to Summary Abatement of Nuisances). 

(e) Following the first sentence of Section 23-1 of the City Code (relative 
to the Weeded Lot Ordinance). 

 
 
Section 2.  The foregoing Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
passage. 
 



CAF 13-82: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 11 

The foregoing Ordinance 13-42, upon motion of Council member __________________ 
and seconded by Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll 
call vote and received the following votes and was APPROVED/DISAPPROVED on this the 
___ day of ______________, 2013:     YES:        . NO:      .  ABSTAIN:     .   ABSENT:      . 

 
       ____________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 4**, p. **. 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the foregoing Ordinance is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13—42, An 
Ordinance Providing For Limited Enforcement In The Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction, Pursuant To 
Section 40 Of The City Charter, Of The Minimum Housing Code; Abandoned Structures 
Ordinance; Summary Abatement Of Nuisances Ordinance; Weeded Lot Ordinance; And Junked, 
Abandoned And Nuisance Motor Vehicles Ordinance, adopted by the Henderson, City Council 
in Regular Session on **  ** 20** (See Minute Book 4*, p. **.).  This Ordinance is recorded in 
Ordinance Book # 8, pp. **. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of  *** 20**. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 



CAF 13-82: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 11 

 

CAF 13-82 
Attachment #2 



CAF 13-82: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 11 

 



CAF 13-82: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 11 

 



CAF 13-82: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 8 of 11 

 



CAF 13-82: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 9 of 11 

 



CAF 13-82: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 10 of 11 

 



CAF 13-82: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 11 of 11 

 
 



CAF 13-27-A: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 16 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 18 July 2013 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  13-27-A 

Consideration of Approval of: 1) Resolution 13-21-A  Accepting the North Carolina 
Governor’s Highway Safety Program Grant in the Amount of $18,300 for the  
Purchase of Traffic Enforcement Equipment; and 2) Ordinance 13-46, FY14, BA #6 
Establishing Budget for Said Grant. 
 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 

 KSO 2:  To Reduce Crime and Provide for a Safe Community. 
 KSO 8:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay 

               Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of              
               Regulatory Authorities. 

 
 
Recommendation:             
 

Approval of: 
 
 Resolution 13-21-A  Accepting the North Carolina Governor’s Highway Safety Program 

Grant in the Amount of $18,300 for the  Purchase of Traffic Enforcement Equipment  
 Ordinance 13-46, FY14, BA #6 Establishing Budget for Said Grant. 

 
 
Executive Summary 
 
On 25 February 2013, Council approved an application to the North Carolina Governor’s 
Highway Safety Program Grant in the amount of $18,300 via Resolution 13-21. 
 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: ___________ 
 
Council Meeting: 22 July 13 Work Session   
 



CAF 13-27-A: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 16 

 

This grant will provide funding for the Henderson Police Department to purchase the following 
items to be used in Traffic Safety and Traffic Enforcement: 
 
 Traffic Equipment Trailer 
 Portable Light Tower and Generator 
 Portable Generator 
 Traffic Cones 
 Three (3) portable Checkpoint signs with stands 
 OSHA/DOT Certified Traffic Vests 
 Traffic Flashlights 
 
On 17 July 2013, notice was received the grant was approved by the NC Governor’s Highway 
Safety program for the full amount of $18,300. In other words the anticipated local match of 
$4,575 is no longer required as this is a 100% grant. The grant terms will be October 1, 2013 – 
September 30, 2014. Even though grand funding will not be released until 1 October 2013, all 
funds will be spent during the City’s fiscal year, ending 30 June 2014.  A Budget Ordinance 
establishing the grant project is enclosed herewith for Council’s consideration and approval.   
 
Enclosures:  
 

1. Resolution 13-21-A 
2. NC Governor’s Highway Safety Program Local Governmental Resolution  
3. Ordinance 13-46 
4. Notice of Approval 

  



CAF 13-27-A: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 16 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   13-21-A 
 

ACCEPTING THE NC GOVERNOR’S HIGHWAY SAFETY GRANT IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $18,300 FOR THE PURCHASE OF TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT 

EQUIPMENT 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) at its 
2013 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows:  KSO 

2: To Reduce Crime and Provide for a Safe Community, and KSO 8:  To Provide 
Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to Meet the 
Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory Authorities; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson Police Department has partnered with the NC Governor’s Highway 

Safety Commission in the past and has successfully applied for and received grant 
funding for equipment; and 

 
WHEREAS, on 25 February 2013, via Resolution 13-21, the Henderson City Council (herein 

called the “Governing Body”) approved the filing of an application by the Henderson 
Police Department for the NC Governor’s Highway Safety Program Grant; and 

 
WHEREAS, notice was received that said application has been approved to proceed to the next 

step of the application process; and  
 
WHEREAS, Council approval is required for acceptance of the grant and these conditions in 

open meeting, said conditions being more fully articulated in Attachment A to this 
Resolution. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL: 
 

1. That the project referenced above is in the best interest of the Governing Body and 
the general public: and 

2. That City Manager A. Ray Griffin, Jr. is authorized to file, on behalf of the 
Governing Body, an application contract in the form prescribed by the Governor’s 
Highway Safety Program for federal funding in the amount of $18,300 to be made 
payable to the City of Henderson to assist in defraying the cost of the project 
described in the contract application; and 

3. That the Governing Body has formally appropriated the cash contribution of $ 0.00 as 
required by the project contract; and 

4. That the Project Director designated in the application contract shall furnish or make 
arrangement for other appropriate persons to furnish such information, data, 
documents and reports as required by the contract, if approved, or as may be required 
by the Governor’s Highway Safety Program; and 



CAF 13-27-A: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 16 

 

5. That certified copies of this resolution be included as part of the contract referenced 
above; and 

6. That this resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 

The foregoing Resolution 13-21-A, introduced by Council Member _____________and 
seconded by Council Member __________on this the ___ day of _____ 2013 and having been  
Submitted to a roll call vote, was approved by the following votes: YES:  .  NO:  .  ABSTAIN:  .  
NO:  .         

__________________________
 James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
______________________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk  
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
_____________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference Minute Book 42, pg. *** 
  



CAF 13-27-A: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 16 

 

 

 
  

Resolution 13-21-A 
Attachment A 



CAF 13-27-A: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 16 

 

 
  



CAF 13-27-A: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 16 

 

 
  



CAF 13-27-A: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 8 of 16 

 

 
  



CAF 13-27-A: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 9 of 16 

 

 
  



CAF 13-27-A: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 10 of 16 

 

 
  



CAF 13-27-A: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 11 of 16 

 

 
  



CAF 13-27-A: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 12 of 16 

 

 
  



CAF 13-27-A: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 13 of 16 

 

 
  



CAF 13-27-A: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 14 of 16 

 

O R D I N A N C E  13-46 
 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2013--2014 BUDGET 
ESTABLISHING THE BUDGET FOR NC GOVERNOR’S HIGHWAY SAFETY 

PROGRAM GRANT, BUDGET AMENDMENT #6 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council), on 27 June 2013, adopted its 
FY 13-14 Operating Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council has created and uses a Grants Projects Fund for active grant projects. 

said fund referred to as 55: Grants Projects Fund; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating and grants projects fund from time-to-time, said amendment being incorporated 
into this Ordinance. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 

 

 
 
The foregoing Ordinance 13-46, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the ___ day of ___ 2013:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   ABSENT:  **.             
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-13 Budget Amendment Revised

205: GHSP Traff ic Checkpoint Equipment Grant NC Gov Hwy Safety Grant 55-205-458205 -$             -$               18,300$          18,300$                       
  -$             -$               -$                -$                            

Total -$             -$               18,300$          18,300$                       
18,300$                       

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-13 Budget Amendment Revised

205: GHSP Traff ic Checkpoint Equipment Grant Capital: Equipment < $5,000 55-205-507400 -$             -$               6,300$            6,300$                         
Capital: Equipment > $5,000 55-205-507405 -$             -$               12,000$          12,000$                       

-$             -$               -$                -$                            

Total -$             -$               18,300$          18,300$                       
18,300$                       

Variance -$               

FUNDS: 55: Grants Project Fund 
FY13-14 Budget Amendment # 6

Establishing Grant Project 55-205: GHSP Traffic Checkpoint Equipment

 

22 July 2013 Meeting; CAF 13-27-A; Ordinance #13-46, BA #6 This amendment establishes the project budget for a NC Governor's Highway Safety Grant awarded to the 
Henderson Police Department.  The total grant funding will be $18,300.  The initial grant request would have 
provided for 75%, or $13,725 of grant funds, with a 25% grant match of $4,575 to be provided through Federal 
Asset Forfeitures.  However, 100% grant funding was approved, therefore no match is required.  The grant will 
be used to purchase various pieces of equipment, including an equipment trailer, a light tower and generator, 
traffic cones, a set of three checkpoint signs with stands, traffic vests, and flashlights with accessories.

GRANT PROJECTS FUND REVENUES:  55

Reference: Notes:

Ordinance 13-46

GRANT PROJECTS FUND EXPENDITURES:  55



CAF 13-27-A: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 15 of 16 

 

_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. ***; CAF 13-27-A 
 
____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13-46 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on ___ ______ 2013 (Minute Book 42 p.**). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of ______2013. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
  



CAF 13-27-A: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 16 of 16 

 

 

CAF 13-27-A 
Attachment #4 



CM 13-15: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 

17 July 2013 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 

RE: CM 13-15: Review of Utility Late Fee, Reconnection Service Fee and Security 
Deposits Policies 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Background 
 
During the 8 July Council meeting, Mr. Anthony Jones appeared before Council during the non-
agenda citizen comment period to discuss his concerns about the City’s late payment fee of $12 
and delinquent payment service fee of $13 which he was charged in June.  Subsequent to Mr. 
Jones’ discussion, Councilmember Coffey spoke about a customer who recently had difficulty in 
establishing an account due to the security deposit requirement.  
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for a report on the matter and Councilmembers requested the matter of the 
City’s policies regarding late fees, service fees and security deposits be placed on the July work 
session.  (See Attachment No. 1) 
 
Policies Development  
 
Detailed information was provided to each utility customer via in-bill information inserts, one-
on-one at the customer service window, telephone inquiries and City’s website. 
 

 Late Fee:  A $12.00 Late Fee has been a long established policy in the City for customers 
who are late paying their utility bills.  The City’s practice has been to waive one late fee 
within a 12 month period if the customer requests it.  Late Fees, other than the initial one, 
are not charged to customers who are granted a payment agreement and abide by it.  If 
the customer breaks the payment agreement, the waived late fees are reapplied to the 
account. 

 

City Council Memo 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
 
Agenda Item: _________ 
 
Council Meeting: 22 July 13 Work Session 



CM 13-15: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 Service Fee:  A Service Fee has been a long established policy in the City for customers 
who have not paid their bills by 5 p.m. on the business day prior to the cut-off date.  Prior 
to November 2011, the Service Fee was $40.00.  As a result of the November 2011 
implementation of security deposits, the Service Fee was reduced from $40.00 to $25.00. 
In February 2012, Council further reduced the Service Fee from $25.00 to $13.00.  The 
Service Fee is currently $13.  Service Fees are not waived. 
 

 Security Deposit:  As previously stated, no security deposits were required prior to 
November 2011.  In February 2012, Council reduced the security deposit fee structure for 
residential customers.  In February 2013, Council revisited the security deposit fee 
structure and learned the loss exposure was significant in light of the current deposit fee 
schedule and length of time between billing and collections.  Consequently, the security 
deposit fees were increased to $150 and $200 for residential inside and outside; 
respectively.  Residential customers who have been placed on the delinquent payment list 
twice in an 18-month period and all commercial, business, industrial and non-profit 
customers would have to establish a 2.5 average monthly bill security deposit.  Security 
deposits are returned to the customer after 12 months good pay history.  Good pay history 
means not being placed on the cut-off list.  Additionally, a customer who otherwise has 
been a good paying customer and not previously been on the cut-off list may receive a 
one-time waiver of having to establish a security deposit. 

 
 Grace Period:  Prior to February 2012, the City had no well-defined Grace Period.  In 

February 2012, Council established a 10 business-day Grace Period.  Because of the 
significant lag time caused by the 10-business day period, particularly when holidays 
occurred, Council modified  the Grace Period in March 2013 to 7 calendar days, and 
longer if the delinquent date fell on a holiday or weekend.  We have recently learned a 
grace period of not less than 10 calendar days be provided.  We have implemented this 
policy.  It is recommended an ordinance amendment be approved making this change. 

Recommendations: 
 The practice of waiving the late fee once if the customer has otherwise had a good pay 

history in the previous 12 months be made automatic rather than the customer having to 
ask for it.  This revision parallels the policy for the one-time security deposit waiver. 

 Ratify the conversion from 7 to 10 calendar days for the grace period. 
 
Enclosure: 

1. Utility Inquiries 
 
 

 
 



CM 13-15: 22 July 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 

 

Council Memo 13-15 
Attachment No. 1 

 
Utility Inquiries 
 
During the 8 July meeting, discussion surrounding two customers’ utility accounts was had.  Mayor 
O’Geary requested the city manager to review the matter and provide a report to Council. 
 
Mr. Anthony Jones appeared before Council and requested the City’s policies regarding how the late and 
disconnection service fee are applied be amended.  A review of Mr. Jones’ account reveals the following: 

 Mr. Jones is considered to be a good paying customer.  He has been late in payment twice. (late = 
not paying by 5 p.m. on the due date) His first late fees was on 4 March 2011.  Per his request, a 
courtesy adjustment was given to him, thus removing the late fee.  His second late fee was 
applied on 4 June 2013.  The fee was not adjusted since Mr. Jones had previously received a 
courtesy adjustment in March 2011. 

 Mr. Jones has not been delinquent in paying his utility bill prior to June 2013. (delinquent = not 
paying the amount past due by 5 p.m. on the business day prior to the cut-off day) While the 
standard $13 service fee was applied, he was granted a one-time waiver of having to establish a 
security deposit pursuant to policy. 

 Overall, the bill about which Mr. Jones is concerned was for the 10 May billing cycle.  The bill’s 
past due date was 3 June and the cut-off date was 11 June. In order to not be placed on the cut-off 
list, the past due amount would have had to have been paid by 5 p.m. on 10 June.  These dates are 
clearly presented on the utility bill.  According to Customer Service Supervisor Bennett, Mr. 
Jones was quite agitated at the front window on 11 June, so much to the extent the police were 
called to reestablish calm and order.  Mr. Jones did visit with Ms. Bennett a week later and 
apologized for his behavior. 

 For the billing cycle in question, 2,282 bills were prepared and mailed.  170 customers were on 
the cut-off list.   

 
Councilmember Coffey raised a question about City policy as it relates to a customer seeking to establish 
a utility account.  She was required to establish a $200 security deposit.  Finance Director Brafford and I 
met with the customer in question on the day she sought to establish the account.  Her concerns were 
reviewed with the Customer Service Representatives.  A review of her former account reveals the 
following: 
 

 The customer initially established an account with the City in October 2008.  The account was 
closed by the City in October 2010.  During this period of time, the customer had been late 21 
times and placed on the delinquent cut-off list four (4) times.  The customer left an account 
balance of $174.05 in October 2010.  This outstanding balance was not collected until February 
2013.  The balance was collected as a result of Customer Service Supervisor Bennett applying for 
collection of the outstanding balance via the State’s Debt Set-Off Program.  Additionally, she did 
not provide a letter of good pay history from her most recent water utility provider. 



CIP # NAME RIGHT OF WAY ACQUIS. PERMITS COMMENTS

Yes/No
Dollar

 Amount
*Engineering 

Contract Approval Design Type
Contract 
App.

Start
Date Duration

REGIONAL:
46‐938 Warren County POS Meter Relocation YES 100,100$              YES IP YES YES INF YES 8/1/13 Contract Approval
46‐939 High Service Pump Replacement YES 1,129,000$           YES IP NA YES FOR Bid‐ August
46‐937 Interbasin Transfer of Water YES 833,100$              YES IP NA NO N/A Ongoing
46‐935 20 MGD Expansion NO 1,217,564$           NO NA YES Bid‐2015

WATER:
43‐850 2" Water Line Replacement Project YES 1,726,000$           IH IP NA IP FOR  7/25/13 Bid Date
43‐851 Water Meter Purchase YES 294,000$              IH IP NA NA INF YES 8/1/2013 12 Months 3/4" meters received

Julia Ave Phase II CDBG YES (County) IH IP NA IP FOR YES Complete
43‐852 Beckford Water Main Construction YES 47,500$                YES IP NA IP FOR Engineering Design Only

GENERAL/POWELL BILL:
94‐924 Beckford Drive Widening YES 1,031,250$           YES IP IP COMPLETE 2 R/WS Remaining
42‐575 Hillside Avenue YES 62,848$                IH COMPLETE COMPLETE NA YES COMPLETE Complete
42‐575 Birch Circle Storm Repair YES 46,266$                NA/IH NA NA NA INF. YES COMPLETE Complete

42‐575 Cameron Drive Storm Repair YES 11,263$                  NA   NA NA NA NA (IH)
Mid August weather 

permitting

N/A Chavasse Avenue Widening YES 700,000$                STATE STATE CITY/IP STATE STATE STATE

State Completing Revised 
R/W

Information On Plans

SEWER:
44‐851 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project YES 1,131,628$           YES COMPLETE NA YES FOR YES 11/15/2012 180 Days 98 % complete
44‐847 HWR Facility Renovation Project YES 17,017,300$         YES COMPLETE IP YES FOR IP 3/13/2013 18‐24 Months On Schedule
44‐857 Sandy Creek Pump Station Project YES 1,836,000$           IP  IP N/A IP FOR Design 

44‐842 Newton Road Pump Station Project YES 47,900$                  YES COMPLETE IP YES FOR
Construction Not

Funded
44‐854 Elmwood Cemetery Outfall YES 19,300.00$           PER Completed IP Under Review

IP=IN PROCESS
IH=IN HOUSE
FOR=FORMAL BIDDING
INF=INFORMAL BIDDING
*=DESIGNATES ENGINEERING CONTRACT OR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT APPROVAL BY CITY COUNCIL
**=WORK WAS PERFORMED BY BORING CONTRACTOR AND CITY FORCES TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE WATER PRESSURE AND DELIVERY

DESIGN BIDDING

MAJOR PROJECT UPDATE REPORT
Last Updated: 7/18/2013‐ev

FUNDED CONSTRUCTION


	#18 SRM 22 July 2013
	#19 8 July Reg
	CAF 13-33-A  Mental Health Establishments O 13-17
	CAF 13-87 (replacing the shelter  contents of Police Training Center) O 13-44
	CAF 13-88 Approving Transfer of Business License from Council to Finance O 13-45
	CAF 13-81 Board and Commission  appointments R 13-59
	CAF 13-83 Awarding  handgun and badge to retiring officer Hawkins R 13-61
	CAF 13-84 (re-budget lease purchase of equipment) O 13-43
	CAF 13-86  Tax rel-ref June  2013
	Meetings and Event Calendar
	#7 May 21 Thru June 20 2013 Report
	#4 May 2013 HFD
	June 2013 HPD Report
	Department Monthly Report June 2013.pdf
	Jun13 Preliminary Report Table

	#19 WS  22 July 2013
	CAF 13-14 (Closing out Fund 40 Public Library Fund) O 13-41 FY14 BA#3
	CAF 13-80 Part-Time Employment Dress and Separation Policies  R 13-55
	CAF 13-82  ETJ Enforcement O 13-42
	CAF 13-27-A Accepting NC Gov Hwy Safety Program Grant for PD R 13-21-A O 13-46 FY BA#6
	CIPFUNDS

